AGENDA

SPECIAL MEETING

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MONDAY - AUGUST 8, 2022 - 11:00 A.M.
Join Zoom Meeting at https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89521384378

Meeting ID: 895 2138 4378

Or by Phone:
One tap mobile
+16699006833,,89521384378# US (San Jose)

Dial by your location
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 895 2138 4378
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kc03wkemDU

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) ADVISORY NOTICE
Consistent with the provisions in Assembly Bill 361, this Board meeting will be held virtually
using Zoom.

Public comments for this meeting can be submitted via email to the District Clerk at
Cindy.Hernandez@cityofsanrafael.org. The public comment period opens when the agenda is
posted online and will close two hours prior to the start of the meeting. Include your name and
the item you would like to provide written comment on.

To provide comments during the meeting, please use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom
Meeting and the host will notify and unmute you when it is your turn to speak.

If you experience an issue providing comments in the meeting or want to comment via phone,
please call 415-485-3132.

Members of the public may speak on Agenda items.

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPT TELECONFERENCE MEETING RESOLUTION TO COMPLY
WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 361

Adopt resolution making findings that the proclaimed state of emergency
continues to impact the ability to meet safely in person and declaring that the
Board will continue to meet remotely in order to ensure the health and safety of
the public.



10.

OPEN PERIOD

Opportunity for the public to address the Board on items not on the agenda.
(Presentations are generally limited to 2 minutes.)

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

Request approval as submitted — June 2, 2022.
PAYMENTS

Request approval as submitted.

OLD BUSINESS

a.

Discussion and update on the Bayside Acres Sewer Relocation Project.

NEW BUSINESS

a.

Report on bid opening for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement
Project, Phase 2, and adopt resolution to award contract.

Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to sign
an Amendment to Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for construction
related services for Phase 2 of the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement.

Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to sign
an Amendment to Agreement with Nute Engineering for construction related
services for Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project.

Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to sign
an Amendment to Agreement with Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc.,
for additional public relations related services for the Bayside Acres Beach
Sewer Relocation Project.

Discussion on providing assistance to the District Manager/District
Engineer.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

a.

District Manager executed a Professional Services Agreement with Maze
and Associates for audit related services.

DIRECTOR REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
ADJOURNMENT

The next scheduled meeting is September 1, 2022.



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 2.

DATE: August 8, 2022

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer )7

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Making Findings that the Proclaimed State of Emergency

Continues to Impact the Ability to Meet Safety in Person and Declaring that
the Board will Continue to Meet Remotely in Order to Ensure the Health and
Safety of the Public

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt resolution making the findings that the proclaimed state of emergency continues to impact
the ability to meet in person and declaring that the Board will continue to meet remotely in order
to ensure the health and safety of the public.

BACKGROUND:

The Ralph M. Brown Act requires that except as specifically provided, “meetings of the
legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and all persons shall be permitted to
attend any meeting of the legislative body,” Gov. Code Section 54953(a). For many years, the
Brown Act has authorized members of a local agency’s legislative body to attend a public
meeting by teleconference in compliance with strict procedural requirements. Under
Government Code Section 54953(b)(3), in order to use teleconferencing, at least a quorum of the
legislative body must participate from locations within the agency’s boundaries; and the agency
must give notice of each teleconference location and allow members of the public to address the
Council at each teleconference location.

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a statewide State of Emergency in connection
with the COVID-19 pandemic. Subsequently, on March 18, 2020, the Governor issued
Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspending the Brown Act’s requirements for in-person meetings
and facilitating the use of teleconferencing for public meetings during the State of Emergency.
The Executive Order authorized public meetings to be held by teleconference only, provided that
notice and accessibility requirements are met, members of the public are allowed to observe and
address the legislative body at the meeting, and there is a procedure for receiving and swiftly
resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals with disabilities. This order
has allowed the Board to hold its public meetings using teleconference technologies, with the
requisite notice and public participation; however, the order was due to expire on September 30,
2021, and without legislative action, in-person meetings and the strict teleconferencing
procedures of the Brown Act would again be required.



Because the statewide State of Emergency continues and the COVID-19 pandemic still poses a
health risk for public meetings, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law as an
urgency measure Assembly Bill (AB) 361. AB 361 amends the Brown Act provisions governing
the use of teleconferencing for public meetings of a local agency’s legislative bodies, allowing
more liberal teleconferencing requirements to continue during the current and future state-
declared emergencies.

ANALYSIS:

Executive Order N-29-20 has now expired, but AB 361 is now in effect, and its amendments to
the Brown Act will allow the District to continue to hold its meetings using teleconferencing
technology after September 30th. Government Code Section 54953, as amended by AB 361, now
provides in new subsection (e)(1) that during the current and any future state-declared State of
Emergency, the legislative body of a local agency may use teleconferencing without complying
with the procedural requirements of Government Code Section 54953(b)(3) in any of three
circumstances:

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed State of Emergency, and State
or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing.

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed State of Emergency for the
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed State of Emergency and has
determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that as a result of the
emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of
attendees.

Certain additional requirements would apply under the new law, however, including specific
requirements as to how public comment must be allowed and heard, with which the Board
already complies. In addition:

e In the event of a disruption which prevents the Board from broadcasting the meeting to
members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, or in the
event of a disruption within the District’s control which prevents members of the public
from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based service option,
the legislative body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting agenda
until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service option is
restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevent the public
agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 54960.1.

e If a State of Emergency remains active or state of local officials have imposed or
recommended measures to promote social distancing in order to continue to
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative
body shall, not later then 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to



subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the
following findings by majority vote:
o The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the State of
Emergency.
o Any of the following circumstances exist:
= (i) The State of Emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the
members to meet safely in person.
* (i) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to
promote social distancing.

This resolution is intended to comply with the requirement to make specified findings every 30
days. The resolution finds that the State of Emergency continues in effect, that measures to
promote social distancing are still being imposed by the State and county, and that the State of
Emergency directly impacts the ability of the public and the members of the Board to meet safely
in person. The proposed resolution confirms the Board’s determination that its public meetings
should continue to be held using only teleconferencing technology.

Staff plans to agendize the same type of resolution at each regular Board meeting during the
pendency of the statewide state of emergency so that the Board may continue to reconsider these
findings at least every 30 days.

The Brown Act amendments adopted by AB 361 will be operative until January 1, 2024, and will
then expire unless extended by new legislation.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

OPTIONS:

The Board has the following options to consider on this matter:
Adopt the resolution as proposed.

Adopt a modified resolution.

Direct staff to return with more information.

Take no action.

i paS

ACTION REQUIRED:

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the resolution making the findings that the proclaimed
State of Emergency continues to impact the ability to meet in person and declaring that the Board
will continue to meet remotely in order to ensure the health and safety of the public.

Attachment: Resolution



RESOLUTION NO. 22-1248

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN RAFAEL
SANITATION DISTRICT MAKING FINDINGS THAT THE PROCLAIMED STATE OF
EMERGENCY CONTINUES TO IMPACT THE ABILITY TO MEET SAFELY IN
PERSON AND DECLARING THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL CONTINUE
TO MEET REMOTELY IN ORDER TO ENSURE THE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF
THE PUBLIC

WHEREAS, the San Rafael Sanitation District (the “District”) is committed to preserving and
nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, all meetings of the District’s legislative bodies are open and public, as required by
the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 — 54963), so that any member of the public may
attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative body conduct their business; and

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions for remote
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance
with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of
certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency to make
additional resources available, formalize emergency actions already underway across multiple
state agencies and departments, and help the State prepare for a broader spread of COVID-19;
and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newsom
issued Executive Order N-29-20, which suspended certain provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act
in order to allow local legislative bodies to conduct meetings electronically without a physical
meeting place; and

WHEREAS, as a result of Executive Order N-29-20, staff set up Zoom teleconference meetings
for all District Board of Directors meetings; and

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, which
specified that Executive Order N-29-20 would remain in effect through September 30, 2021, at
which point it would expire; and

WHEREAS, since the issuance of Executive Order N-08-21, the Delta variant has emerged,
causing a spike in COVID-19 cases throughout the state; and



WHEREAS, the Governor's proclaimed State of Emergency remains in effect, and State and
local officials, including the Marin County Director of Health and Human Services, the
California Department of Public Health, and the Department of Industrial Relations, have
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, the Governor signed Assembly Bill 361 into law, as
urgency legislation that goes into effect on October 1, 2021, amending Government Code
Section 54953 of the Brown Act to allow legislative bodies to continue to meet remotely during a
proclaimed state of emergency, provided certain conditions are met and certain findings are
made; and

WHEREAS, the continued local rates of transmission of the virus and variants causing COVID-
19 are such that the Director of Health & Human Services has recommended that the County
continue to emphasize social distancing in order to minimize the potential spread of COVID-19
during indoor, public meetings.

WHEREAS, the District cannot maintain adequate safe social distance between members of the
public, Board members and staff in their respective meeting locations; and

WHEREAS, because of the rise in cases due to the Delta variant, the District is concerned about
the health and safety of attendees, the District’s Board of Directors desires to take the actions
necessary to comply with AB 361 and to continue to hold its Board and committee meetings
remotely.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD OF
DIRECTORS RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the State of Emergency and finds that:

a. The factors triggering the State of Emergency continue to directly impact the ability
of the members of the Board of Directors, District staff, and members of the public to
meet safely in person; and

b. State and local officials continue to recommend measures to promote social

distancing.

2. District Board of Directors meetings will continue to be conducted remotely for the next 30
days in compliance with AB 361 and Government Code Section 54953(e)(2), in order to ensure
the health and safety of the public while providing access to public meetings.

3. The Board of Directors will reconsider the circumstances of the State of Emergency and
revisit the need to conduct meetings remotely within 30 days of the adoption of this Resolution.



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation District Board of
Directors held on the 8th day of August 2022 by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

Kate Colin, Chair

Maribeth Bushey, Secretary



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Minutes of the Meeting
June 2, 2022

Regular Meeting Via Teleconferencing

The meeting was called to order at 11:00 A.M. by Chair Kate.

Attendance Kate Colin, Chair
Board: Maribeth Bushey, Secretary/Director
Katie Rice, Director
Attendance Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer
Staff: Kris Ozaki, Operations and Maintenance Manager

Tim Tran, Associate Civil Engineer
Darlene Baten, Administrative Assistant Temp

Attendance Kerry Laiw Gerchow, Deputy County Counsel
Others:
1. ROLL CALL — A roll call was taken, and Chair Kate, Director Bushey, and Director Rice

were present.

ADOPT TELECONFERENCE MEETING RESOLUTION TO COMPLY WITH
ASEMBLY BILL 361

Adopt resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Rafael Sanitation District making
findings that the proclaimed State of Emergency continues to impact the ability to meet safely
in person and declaring that the Board of Directors will continue to meet remotely in order
to ensure the health and safety of the public.

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to adopt the resolution making
findings that the proclaimed State of Emergency continues to impact the ability to meet safely
in person and declaring that the Board of Directors will continue to meet remotely in order
to ensure the health and safety of the public.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Kate
NOES: None
ABSENT: None Motion Carried

OPEN PERIOD — No persons were present to address the Board.



MINUTES OF MAY 5, 2022, AND MAY 20, 2022

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to approve the minutes of the
May 5, 2022, regular meeting and the May 20, 2022, special meeting as presented.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Kate
NOES: None
ABSENT: None Motion Carried

PAYMENTS

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to approve the payments for May
2022 for maintenance and operation of the District and for capital improvements.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Kate
NOES: None
ABSENT: None Motion Carried

OLD BUSINESS
None.
NEW BUSINESS

a. Report on bid opening for the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project, Phase
A, and adopt resolution to award contract.

District Manager Toy reported that the District plans to divide this project into multiple
phases, decommission the sewer main in the beach, and relocate it to the street. At the
last meeting, the Board decided to install a new individual pump system to each of the
affected homes. The first phase of this project will be to install the new sewer main in
the street, the second phase will be to install the new individual pump systems, and the
third phase will be to decommission the sewer main in the beach. She also reported that
the new sewer main to be installed in the street (Phase A) will be 1,800 feet long and 8
inches in diameter. It will be installed in Point San Pedro Road, Qak Drive, and Marine
Drive. The Notice of Exemption was filed for CEQA at the County Clerk’s office on
May 25" and will be posted for 30 days. She then reported that the bid opening was held
on May 27", The Engineer’s Estimate was $1,114,816, and there were four bidders. W.
R. Forde Associates, Inc., had the low bid of $1,244,155. Nute Engineering reviewed
Forde’s bid package. The District has used W. R. Forde for a couple of force main
projects in the past, and Novato Sanitary District has used them for its on-call services
for its reclaimed water infrastructure. Nute recommends that the District award this
project to W. R. Forde Associates, Inc., and staff agrees with this recommendation.



MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to adopt the resolution
awarding the contract to W. R. Forde Associates, Inc., for the Bayside Acres Beach
Sewer Relocation Project, Phase A.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Kate
NOES: None
ABSENT: None Motion Carried

. Adopt resolution establishing the FY 2022-23 Appropriations Limit on tax proceeds
(Proposition 4).

District Manager Toy reported that the California State appropriations limit was
originally established by Proposition 4 in 1979 and places an upper limit on the monies
that can be spent each year from State tax proceeds. The appropriations limit is updated
annually based on changes in the population and per capita income. If the appropriations
limit is below the tax revenue received from the State, the District can retain this revenue
as long as it is used for capital projects; otherwise, it would need to be refunded to the
ratepayers. The District’s FY 2022-23 Appropriations Limit is $1,452,640, and the
District anticipates receiving approximately $1.9 million from State taxes (approximately
$500,000 over the appropriations limit). However, the District will be permitted to keep
the tax revenue under the rules for appropriations subject to limitations because the
District will be able to spend it on capital projects.

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to adopt the resolution
establishing the FY 2022-23 Appropriations Limit on tax proceeds (Proposition 4).

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Kate
NOES: None
ABSENT: None Motion Carried

Discussion on District’s reserve policy.

District Manager Toy reported that she had reviewed the previous meeting minutes and
notes on this matter and saw that the Board had inquired about such things as the industry
norm, other agencies’ reserve policies, and how the District’s reserves had managed to
build up over time. She reported that she felt the buildup of the reserves had occurred
because the District had fallen behind in its CIP projects. The District’s goal has been to
replace 1.6 miles of sewer pipeline per year, but it has been unable to accomplish this.
She also reported that she would look into how the District could catch up on its projects
and then come up with a plan. Manager Toy reported that she would discuss this with
the District’s accountant, Michael Maher, and would bring this matter back to the Board
in the near future. The Board then reported that the following matters would also need
to be addressed: the establishment of a reserve target with a floor and a ceiling, a status
report to meet those numbers, reasons for the reserve, best practices by other agencies,
and a plan to show that the reserves have an actual future allocation in order to better
explain the balance sheet. The Board also asked that staff consider matters other than
CIPs that will require funding as part of this policy, such as one-time projects,
recommendations made by MRG, etc.



8. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
None.

9. DIRECTOR REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
None.

10. CLOSED SESSION

a. Public Employee Performance Evaluation
California Government Code Section 54957
Title: District Manager

Closed Session — Opened at 11:18 A.M.
Closed Session — Ended at 12:25 P.M.

Chair Kate reported that the Board met in closed session on the public employee
performance evaluation. Deputy County Counsel Gerchow reported that the Board
unanimously agreed to approve the District Manager’s request for a salary increase from
3.5% to 4% retroactive to July 2021.

11. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting of June 2, 2022, was
adjourned at 12:26 P.M. The next regular meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation District
scheduled for July 7, 2022, and the regular meeting for August 4, 2022, were later canceled,
and a special meeting was scheduled for Monday, August 8, 2022, at 11:00 A.M. via
teleconferencing.

Respectfully submitted,

Maribeth Bushey, Recording Secretary

ATTEST THIS 8th DAY OF AUGUST 2022

Kate Colin, Chair



S0'$00°0K L

§

[1]5:1:3 sopues auoydsjel  yEGZ 00l 22/02/5-22/\ 2y Wo sdojde 10} 20IA19S SSB[BUIM - 921A19S Buoydal|a L (€29.¥€2.€)SSTTIHIM NOZINIA
zLvEl Qonas suouds|sl  yEGZ 001 22/11/5-22/81 /v Woij suonels dwind )o00ead pue 01pad LeS 3uj 1o} sassalppe d| sjenud - 8disg auoydajel (65956€2¥2)SSTTIHIM NOZINIA
(74 sulew 2210} @ s.B1s dwnd -JUBW  6SEZ 00¢ uoners dwnd esaiary Joy sabuiy Joop Jojelsush - suonels duind ANTWAY FLVHOJHOI MNVE SN
00°608 sulew 2210} g sejs dwnd -JUe  6GEZ 00¢ Jledas oiped - suoels dwng ANFWAY FLYHOJHOI MNVE SN
Zizee (08) spisAeg Jmg yoead Jo qeyay BEEY ooe pIq Jo @anou ;| uue - j93lo1d sjuswanoidw| Jemeg yoeag saioy spished ANIWAVYC FLVHOJHOI MNVYE SN
6192 mEmzw\Am uoljaa)jod - 90  09€C 002 .__mam._ Jomas >=>m._m . mEm_m>w uonog||od MOOMWVYHS
€1'822'6 (08) apisheq Jms yoeag Jo qeyay BEEY 00e 2Z/L€/€ YBnoly) uolleyigeyay James sa10y apisAeq Joj ¥d - 199(0id Sjuawanoidw] 1amag Yoeag sauoy apisheg ONI SINVIINSNOD SNOILYIINNWNOD HONYY
50°€E9°G4 51500 AN OUDBIF  GEGT 00¢ 22/60/5-22/1 L/ Woly suonejs dwind 1o} 3DIAISS D11198)8 - Jamod §-20292608¥2 9/ 399d
66°220'¢ sulew 8210} g s,gJs dwind -JuiBiN  BGET 00¢ Jojesauab oy |as3Ip pahp pal mof eniin - suojjeg duing NWN310813d AVd HLIHON
00009 saoinag Bununoooy L1212 0ol 220¢ Ael - saoimag Bulunoddy AONVINNOJJV HdIHVYIN
00°SSE'L (09) (4eniy o1 seheH) IS PIYL O¥EF  0OE 2210/ YBnoiy) seoInIas paje|al UoNonisuoD pue ubisep - 18a11S Alepy 01 90e|d SUsje0T foid “geysy Jamas 1S payL ‘ONI 'STLVIDOSSY ANY NYOH-AFTNIM
00°088°4 (0g) [dox/eday odid ImMaS 1202 6VEY  00€ z2i0€/y ubnoiy) Apnis ubisapaid siedas Jamas | Z0g - 198f01d Juswaoe|dey pue liedsy adid Jomas |Z0Z "ONI ‘STLVIDOSSY ONY NYOH-AZ TN
ZroLt sulew 2910} % s.ejs dund -Julely  65€2 002 adej dijs uou dwel peo. dwind ssedAq - suoiels duind HIONIVHD
08°Z¥0'92 0l) luswaoe|day anfep uoielos| Gyey  0O0E sped anjea yunza( - JUaWaoe|day SA[BA UOIE(0S] 09 NISTO YNVYH
0.°906 saolmas Bupinsuo)  gzez 0ol 2Z/G1iG uo Buipua yaam ay) 1o} JuejsisSe anjessiuiwpe Alelodws) - seolusg Bunnsuod "ONI S3J0IN43S SSTHIXT
GL'88p'L sulew 2210} ¥ $,£Js dwnd JUBN  6GEZ 00¢ UojIMsS Jajsuel] Xi 0} 31om - suoliels duind NOILOW-0412373
00'96 uoyeonpa pue Bululel]  gaez 00l INEZQ S ‘[emaual diysiaquiaw I - sanq pue diysiaquisiy dI.1-¥IMD
0016 uojjeanps pue Suluier] ggezg 0ol zanblpoy 10)oaH ‘|emausal diysiaquiall yIAAD - sang pue diysiaquiaiy doi-¥Imo
00°16 uoyeonps pue buluiel] g8ez 00l 14D 1S M sejbnoq 'lemaual diysiaquiaw YIMD - 58nQ pue diysiaquiaiy do1-¥aIM9D
08°6€6 (08) (Jon1y 0) s9ABH) 1S PIYL OPEP  0OS ZZ/20/| YBnoly} saainas pajejal uoionsuod pue ubisap - Al o} 19a1}g Ynod 128f01d ‘geyay Jamas jaang payL "ONI dNOYD YONT HIOHLS-¥IENLS/MSI
00°6E€'29 (08) (+any 0} s8heH) 1S PUUL OVED 00€ UOIINISUOD Jamas 1o} Juswasingulial - ARy 0] 1981 Yunod jaslold ‘qeysy 1amag joans piayL TIV4VY NYS 40 ALID
00°'S+6°} sulew 8010} 'g s e1s dwnd -uelN 6562 002 dwind peH ja.g 10} Bulisa) yueq peo| pue 8o1uss [enuue - suoliels duind (H43IMOd®AI) "INI ¥IMOd ? 13310 VINYOIITVD
8€'L0¥ (08) apisAeg Jmg yoeag Jo qeysy 8eey 00¢g piq Jo) soads pue sueld - }08[o1d sjuatuanoidul| Jamas Loeag saldy apisheg $SI¥dXJE
09°289 aojuss suoyds|al  vESZ 0ol 22/£0/G-22/¥ 01 WOy 801n8s duoyd (|0 - 821l Buoydala | AllTigon 191y
8.°v6L swioflun 1zdoz 00T 22/81/5 Buipus 301088 Ayaam - swopun STIINYIS WHOLINN HHYINVHY
junowy SWeN Junosay #3)20Y sse[D owepy eo/ed/iopusp

2202 ‘0€ dunp-zzoz ‘4 sunr:

AHYWANS LNIWAYC

10141810 NOILYLINVS 73VIVY NVS



29°094 swa)shs uooajod - WO 09€Z 002 sdins 18] - WalsAg UoNoRY0D HIONIVHO
Zy'0L swejsAs uonoa|od - WO 09€C 002 sped Jusqlosqe - WaSAS uoiid3(loD HIONIVHO
ce'pzl'e 01) Juawaoe|dsy aAEA UOBEIOSE SYEY  O0E sped aAjea yUNZe( - awsoe|dey aABA Uone|os| 09 NISTO YNV
Z0'176's 01) wawaoe|doy aneA UoNelos| SpEr  00€ sped anjeA yunza(Q - Juswaoe|day sAEA UOHE|OS| 09 N3ST0 YNV
S6°Ch sajlyaA sieda) pue sueqd €802 002 60-06 | 8# 2IUSA 10} SI9ISNIPE 310MBU O} SNlid J0J 3J) ~ SIADIYIA 1LYHOdY0D SSTHIXT Tv¥3Ia3d
88's64's saointes Bugnsuod 6zez 00l 22/L1/1 Uo BUIpUa Y3am oL 1oj JuEIsISse sAelisiuwpe Alesodwal - seoiuag Buginsuod “ONI SOINHTS SSTHdXT
§£°699 seolues Bupginsuc) gzez 004 22/01/L UO BUIpUs 3aam SU} Jo} JUB)SISSE aAeJsiUIWpE Areiodwa) - saoinag Buginsuod "ONI SFINHTS $STHIXT
LE9LE'S saoines buginsuod Gzez 001 Z2/61/9 UO BUIpUS %23M SU} JO} JUBISISSE SAIEASIUIWPE AlRI0duIa) - SIS Bunsuod "ONI SFIIAYTS SSTHdXT
0L96L"s saoiuss Bugnsuoy 6zez 00l Z2/21/9 U BuipUa %2aMm U Joj JUejsIsse aAleIsiulwpe Areloduwia) - sedlag Buginsuod "ONI SFJINY3S SSI¥dXT
18°9¢4's saolnes Buginsuod  gzez 00l 22/50/9 UO Buipua yeam a4 Joy Juesisse anessiuwpe Aiejodwa) - seoiusag Buiinsuod "ONI STDINYIS SSTHdXT
0b9Lp'L seopuss Bugnsuod 6zez 001 22/62/S PUE 22/22/G UO BUIpUS Sy88m au] Jo} JUESISse aAefsiuwpe Aeiodws) - saoiusg bupinsuod *ONI STOIAYTS SSFUIXT
iyl saoiues Buynsuo) Gzez 004 22/80/G U0 BUIpUa %8am L 10} Juelsisse sajessiuwpe Aelodws) - seoiueg Buginsuod "ONI SFOINYTS SSTUIXT
£8°029'4 S[ealwayd |ojuod 10pO  90LZ 002 22/0€/9-22/1.0/9 Woyj suoness diund je syue) [esiwayd jo uenoadsul pue 30IAISS - [01JU0) JOPO 2977 'STIDO0TONHIIL ¥ILYM YNOOAT
€8°029'L S|EOIBYD [OU0D JOPO 90LZ 002 22/V£/5-22/10/S Woy suoners dund je syUE) [EDIWBYD J0 Loiaadsul pue S0IAISS - |01jU0] JOPO 277 'STIDOTONHIIL ¥ILVM YNDOAT
8z'42L's spunjoy/alegey zzie 001 2211202 Ad 10} 90-280-G81 NV U2Jny? fedodsid3 1o} 99} Josn Jamas 4o JualAediano Joj punjal - spunjay VINYOHITVI 40 JOHSIE T¥d0ISId3
76'652 suiew 2210} g s,ejs dwnd -uey 65e2 002 1o dwnd pue eYeUS PUE BUIYOEW JOPPOI [[EWS - suoljels duind ONI STSINdYILINT ONT
05'20Z's (08) (lowy o1 seAeH) IS PAUL OVEY  00E 22/50/0 UBNO3Y} Se01AISS paje|al UOJOMUISUOD pue UBISap - Al 0} 19211S Yuno 103fo1d qeusy Jamas 19als pAuL "ONI dNOYD YONT HIOYLS-HIGNLSIMSD
05°€80°4 (08) (Jamy o) safeH) IS pUL OvEY  00E 22/80/S YBNOJY) S301AIBS Pajelal UoROMISUD pue ubisap - Al 0119811 Yuno4 19afid "qeysy Jamag 19318 PIUL "ONI dNOYD YONT HIOY1S-¥IGNLSIMSI
00°L0Z'4 (08) (4oquy 0} sakeH) 1S pAUL OvEF  QOE 22/50/% UBno1y} Sedinas Pajelel Uofonsuod pue ubisap - Alepy 0] 19211S YUNo4 1030.d "qeyay Jamas 193418 PIUL “ONI dNO¥D ¥ONT HIOHLS-HIFNLSIMSD
SZT'P69'Ls sajolyoA sileds) pue sHed €802 00 2Z/L L1 2iL /2L wol siedal S)2IUSA - SSIIUBA J3V4VH NVS 40 ALID
£9°881'04 sajoyan sieds pue sied €802 002 2Z/0€/9-T2/10/p 104 [N} POPES|UN PUE [3S3IP - SSIOIYSA 13V4VY NYS J0 ALID
00°0SS uoneonps pue Buuiel) 88eZ 00l 22/80/9 PUE Z2/20/9 Uo Bujuies| 1apE0T 193]S PIS - UoKEonp3 pue Buiuiel| ADNIOV NOILVLINYS NINYW TYHINID
zzoLE'8rb's aunean abemas zZLLy  00F Z2/08/6-22/ 1011 1oy sabieyo soinas Jepenb js1y - safieyQ sonieg AONIOV NOILVLINVS NI¥YIN TYHINIO
zZ'STS'TIA'E 20119s 1g9p - Jusunes) abemss gLiy  00F Z2/10/6 @Np SPUOQ YSWD UO 801AUSS 1G3p - 921G 1930 AJNIOV NOILYLINYS NINYIN TYHINTD
sLesy'Le QoueJnsul elous 6502 00 €2/1.0/L-22/1.0/2 10} [eMaUB) @oUEINSUI Alewud - 90UEINSU| [BJIUSD HLV LINOW YSI¥ NOILLVLINYS VINYOLITVI
05°605'4 sulew 2010y B s,BJs dwnd juiep 6562 002 UoRElS dWing SWWIS 10} S8P0D Jowa Jo sisoubelp - suonels dwind (YIMOd?aD) "ONI ¥IMOd ¥ 135310 VINYOLITYO
00'626°8 ssopuss buiddew saoed ggly 001 2202 aunr o) Yoy woy siosfosd snosuelzosiw - seoineg Buiddey sanoey (@v2Tv2)ONI SNOLLNTOS avJ VINYOIITYI
62°88 safddns pue juswdinbe fajes g9€z 00T sasselb Aajes - llajes $Y0.1N8I¥1SIa SME
96°28 sollddns pue juswidinbs fipjes G9€Z 002 sanolb - fiojes S¥O1N8IM1SIa SM8
9r'LES salddns pue juswidinba fjsjes  g9ez 002 sanolfi - Aiajes SHOLNGINLSIA SME
94°9EL'Y Sulew 2010} g s,is dund Uy 6982 002  S2/v2/9-22/52/9 wol apebdn pue uoddns alemyos yOyOS 10} UOHRWOINY [[BMO0Y LM 1DENU0I SIAISS - suones dwnd ANVIWOD O1¥.LO3 T3 HLINS-STTHONE
16'081 aoines suoydsel ¥€52 001 22/€0/1-22/%0/9 Wolj 201AI9S Buoyd (120 ~ 80IA19S Suaydals ] ALITIGON L91Y
00°989 aoiugs suoydslel $e5Z 001 22/€0/9-2Z/¥0/G Woly 2IAISS auoyd (|89 - 8o1AIag auoydala L ALINGON 131V
TYShS aoines auoydelal €5z 001 22/10/2-22/20/9 Woy suoneys dwnd je sauoyd - sa1neg suoydaje | Z969« 191V
§L°6LS Qolues duoydele] $€SZ 001 22/40/9-22/20/G Wol SISfeip pue suolels dwnd Joj saull puej - 901188 auoydsial £ZS4e L9LY
9£°LES sojuss suoydejel pesz 001 22/10/5-22/20/% Wolj s1ajelp pue suoliels dwind 1o} saul puel - adiAeS suoydas L £2ZShe 131V
LE°L64 swiopun 120z 002 zz/el/L Buipus soinuss Apjaam - suLopun SIDINNTS WHOLINN MHYIWYHY
82°961 swiogun 1202 002 22/90/L Bupus so1a18s Apjaam - suuogun STDINYTS WHOLINN JAYNYHY
0¥ suuogun 120z 002 22/62/9 Bupue adinies Apjasm - suLojun SIDINHIS WHOLINN HHYWVEY
8.°664 swiopun 1202 00T 2z12z/9 Bupue adiues Apjeam - suuiogun STOINYTS WHOLINN HIVNVYY
89'002 swiopun 420z 00T 22/51/9 Buipua ao1n1es Apjaam - suuiogun SIDIAYTS WHOLINN HHYINYHY
£6°96} suuogun 1202 002 22/80/9 Buipus so1AIes Apjaam - suuogun SIINYIS WHOIINN HNYINYHY
£6'961 suuopun 1z0Z  00¢ 22/1.0/9 Bupus ad1nIes Apjoam - suLojun SIJIANTS WHOLINN MHYINVHY
£4°E0Z sulogun 1202 002 22/52/S Bupua aoiies Apjaam - suliopun STOINYTS WHOLINN MEYWYHY
junowy auwieN Junosay #1020y SSB[D owap ~ saAEdUOpUBA

z2oz ‘L& Ainr- zzoz 'y Ainr

AHVYINNNS INTFHNAVC

12141510 NOLLYLINYS 73V4VH NVS



85'642 suonduosgns pue sdiysiequaiy  LgLz 001 S}98/ 8 10} 1| ULBIN - SUORdUISANS INIFWAY FLVHOJHOD XNV SN
£5°219' suonduosqgns pue sdiysisquisiy L€tz 00k £2/€2/€-22/£2/S WOl QyD0oiny - suonduosqng INTWAVd FLVHOJHO0O NYE SN
vZ'sh swalsAs UOROB|I0D - WO 09€Z 002 Budnos - waisAg uonoaod INFWAY TLYHOJHOD XNYE SN
¥ 4] (08) opisheg mS yoead Jo qeyay 8ecr  00E uondwaxa Jo 20U 3|y - 1oal0d SUSWaACICW] JameS Uoeag Saloy apiskeg INIFWAVYC FLVHOJHOD MNVYE S
00°095'86 (1A01) syoeloid snosueflaosiN 002y  00€ jeued jonuoo uoneys duind aHeH ja:d - sjosfold sSnoaue|sosIN ONI ‘ST041INOD 00531
9.'vs sulew s2J0) g seys dwnd -JulelN 65€2 002 uone]S dwnd 09SI9UBL] YUON 18 Jiedss 3es| Joj 91210u0D - SUOEIS dwng MIONWVYHS
00°569'c (08) spisheg 1mg yoeag jo geysy 8ecy  00€ 22/16/5 UBNOIy UGNENIGEYSY Jomes Seloy BpISARE 10} dd - 10efold sjuawanoidw) 1amas Yorag seioy apisked  ONI SINYITNSNOO SNOLLVIINNNINOD Honvy
5262604 (08) opiskeg IMS yoeag jo qeUdy 8EEY  00E 22/0e/y UBNOIU; UOREIIGEYSY Jamas Sa10y apiskeg 10} dd - 1oelold siualsanoldw| Jemas Yoeag seioy apisked  ONI SINVLINSNOD SNOLLVOINNWIWOD HON vy
00°948'Sh s)s00 AN owosl3 ge5Z 002 72/80/9-22/01/g Woy suopes dwnd Joj 801AI9S DUID3) - JaMod 6-Z0292608¢Z 3/ 399d
04°6€L°6 saowuss Buninsuon gzez 001 2207 AeIN pue Judy Joj suopadsul juwiad Jemes - saolueg Buynsuo) ONI ‘ONRIFINIONT ¥ Vd
0£°96 sulew aoJo} ¢ sBis dwnd quieN 6562 002 sasoy Jo} sjeysed - suonels duingd 02 ANIHOVIW OYd
Lrv8Y's swajshs uonas|oo - W90 09€2 00T sued JojoeA - swajsAg Uond3jI0) SITVS INIWINDI NIMO
05°529°9 (sau 6Y Ly M paUIGWOD) 1S PIUL ¥GLY  0OE Z2/1€/5-22/10/G Woyy saoias BuueauBus - 193(01d Juswanaidw) Sd sseifilagiy yorag pue §d 193s pAUL ONI ONINIINIONT LNN
§2°2L8'L (01)1S dwnd Yypyoosioueld "N G5Ly  00€ 22108/9-22/1.0/9 W0y sealnles Buuaauibua - suonelg duind peoJiey 1S9 PUB 0OSIdUE.S UUON ONI ONIM3INIONT FLNN
05°210'4 (1401 ) siosfosd snoaue|@osIN 00ZF  00E 22/02/9-22/10/9 WOl suoleaypowl HOW Uoie)S duing speH jaid - sjoalold snosue@dsin ONI ONIMIINIONT 3LNON
00°ZZ¥ 01) uswaoe|day anleA uonejos] GEF  00€ 22/0E/9-22/10/9 Wouj s901Aas BuuasuiBus - 10alold Juswaoe|day snfeA uoke|os| ONI ONIYFINIONT 3LNN
00°82¢'04 (09) apisAeg Mg yoeag Jo qeyay BEEY  00€ 22/08/9-22/10/9 Wol) sadinas Bupeauibua - 12aoid Sjuswanoidw) jamas Yoeag saloy apisied ONI ONIYIINIONT 31NN
00986°44 (08) opisheq mg yoeag Jo qeYay 8eEy  00E 22/1£/5-22/1.0/G Woy seoyas Bunaauibua - 10elold sjuslwanoidw| Jlamag Yoeag saioy apiskeg ONI ONIYIANIONT 3LNN
00°006'ch (08) opisAeg Mg yoesg Jo geysy 8ety  00€ | oseyd seoiAes UonEB)sanUl [Baluyoe}0ab - joalold Ssiuswanoidwl Jemas yoeag sa10Y spiskeg ONI dNOY9 ONIYIINIONT 2110V d I TN
00°052 seones Aqpuels €96z 002 22/61/9 U0 2NUBAY Uyl 00€Z 104 doles - Agpuels NI 'FOINYTS HIAMIS ¥FLO0N-0L0Y NIMYIN
00°052 sealnies AQpuelg €982 002 22/1.0/9 U0 @NUBAY UJODUIT] $SE| 10} BOIAISS - AGPUEIS ONI 'FOINYTS ¥IMIS HTLO0H-010¥ NIV
00°052 seoInss AqpuelS €962 002 Z2/01/9 UO BNUBAY JEWERIN ¥ 10) 30IAIBS - AgpuBlS ONI ‘FOINYTS ¥IMITS ¥IL00Y-010Y NIMVIN
00°ESS'Y swaesAs uonoa|lod - W0 092 00T 22/90/L U0 anuany y1ed 183Q 8¢ 18 Hom Aousbiawa - wajsAs LoRos|ioD ONI 'FIINMTS ¥IMIS YILO00H-0L0Y NIMYN
62°68 SIS0 Aan JolepA 9€GZ 002 22/60/9-TZ/Z L/ WO DNUBAY PUBIPOOM - JIBM SI1Q ¥3LYM TYIDINNIN NIV IN
6Z°€8 S1S00 AN JBlBM 9EGZ 00T 22/60/9-22/T /v WOL 183G SWWIS - I31BM S1Q ¥3LYM TVJIJINNIN NISYIN
62°¢8 sis0o Ajnn Jolepy 965 002 22/54/9-22/91/p woll dwnd 1omMag 8217 9AUQ BIBIAY - 19IBM SI1G 43LYM TVIJINNIN NINYIN
19'96 985z 002 22ILIS-2TIS LY Woll peoy 01pad UBS Julod - J31BM SI ¥ LYM TVIIDINNIN NISYIN
62'c8 9867 002 22/S1/9-T2/9 L1y WOl BALQ H000EDd - JSIEM SIG ¥FLYM TVJIJINNN NISYIN
€228 1500 AIIn 91BpN  9€GC 002 22/S1/9-22/9\ /v WO} ROy 01pad UES YUON - JleM SIQ ¥ILYM TVIIDINNA NISYIN
6Z°¢8 s1s00 AN JBlep 9EST 00T 22UV 1I9-TT/S 1/ W0l PROY ONDSIUOA - JSIBM SIa ¥FLYM TVIIDINNIN NISYIN
¥9°2794 sisod AR JBlepy 9€GZ 002 22/71/9-22/S L/p Woly pieasinog 0osiouel 1SeJ - JsjeM SIQ ¥3LYM TVIIDINNIN NIHYIN
¥6'€ s1s02 AN JslepM 9€ST 002 22/€1/9-TTUY Lib WOY PIEASINOG 0ISIURLS ISBT - ISIEM SIQ ¥ILYM TVIDINNIN NISYIN
62°c8 S)S00 Ann J9lepM 9862 002 22/€4/9-22/¥ LIy Wolj pleAsinog BUIBIR] - 181BM SIq YT LYM TYJIJINNI NINYIN
vo'rLh 9¢6z 002 22/E1/9-22IY Lip WOl SNUaAY OJISED - JIBM S1Q ¥3LYM TVIIDINNI NIYYIN
62'¢8 iS00 Ajn 1s)lepM 9852 002 22/60/9-22/T V1% WOL) BAUQ USSAIPUY - JIBM SIQ ¥ILYM TYDIJINNIN NIIYIN
6Z°c8 s1s00 AN JB1BAA  9EG2 002 227 1/9-2TIS P WOL PIRA3INOE JoWS) 901E - JB1EM SIg ¥3LYM TVdIDINNI NISYIN
62°c8 $1500 AJjun JBlEM 9€5C 002 2202/60/9-2202/2 /% WOl 3ALQ USSaIPUY | /Z]) - JSIeM S1Q ¥ILYM TVIIDINNIN NIYYIN
62'¢8 $1500 AjIn JSIBM 9667 002 2TISLI9-TZI9L1y Woy peoy uoobeT pi - JoTlepm S1G ¥3LYM TVJIJINNN NINYIN
00°009'¢ seolues Bununoooy L1/ 001 Z20z dunf - saalAleS Bununodoy AINVINNODIY MIHVYIN
05°292°¢ (08) (4a1y 0} s3ABH) 1S PIUL OPEP  00€ 22/0€/9 UDN01Y) S80IAIaS Paiejal UOROILISUD pue uBisap - Alepy 0} 19211S UNNod 103fold "qeyay Jomas 19aAs PIUL "ONI ‘STLYIDOSSY ANV NHOH-ATTWIM
00°559'} (08) (omy 0} sakeH) 1S PINL OVEY  00F 22/1.£/S UBNOIY) Sa01AISS Paje|l UoianIsuoo pue ubisap - AIBj 01 189115 UUNo 103(01d "qeYY Jamas J9alls pIUL “ONI ‘STLVIDOSSY ONY NYOH-ATTNIM
00'o¥e'e (08) (4ol 0} sakeH) 1S pIUL OVEY  00E 22/16/€ UBnoIY)} Se0IAIaS Pale|s] UORAMIISUoO pUE UBISSP - AB 0} 1934)S YUno4 108fold "qeyay Jomag 19ais pIuL “ONJ ‘STLVIDOSSY ANV NYOH-ATTINIM
68°0} sujew 2010} g s;eis dwnd quiely  65€Z 002 uoels dwing sueH jeid Jo) 1iq JaWWeY aABMY0YS - Suojels dwing FHYMAYVH S.NOSHIOYI
z9°L sulew aoso} @ s,ejs dwnd -Julely 85€2 00T uonels dwind sueH 1aid o) 1g JaWwey SABMYO0YS - suole)s dwnd FHYMAYYH S.NOSHIOVI
S5°6 sulew 2010} g s.ejs dwnd quiely 6562 002 uonels dwnd apeH 1319 Joj sped - suonels dwng FHYMAHYH S.NOSHOVT
£8'vE sulew aoJo} @ sejs dwnd -juley 6562 00T uonejg duind aueH 1a1g Joj Axoda anjf - suoges dwingd FYYMANUVYH S.NOSYIVI
00°0S¥'9 swajsfs uolosijos - W0 09e€C 002 anusAy UOISSIW 16 J0j Jfedas jods - welsAg UoRos|0D NOILINYLSNOD NVIWIGNYH




LLELL'ERSE §

WL sulew 99010} g s,gjs dwnd quely 65€Z 002 JUe) [esiwayo apixolq Joj Buidid pue %o8yd aAleA uolelS diund BlalAR - SUOYEIS duing ATddNS 94018 ® SININOJWOI H3LIYM
040 sulew o010} g s,ejs dwnd -Jue 6562 002 ¥o8Uo SAleA Lonels dund BISIAY - suonels duind AlddNS 9074 ® SININOIWOD HILVM
(4] swajshs uoyos|od - W0 09¢€Z 002 994 3187 - Waysks unos||0) ATddNS 94Q79 ® SININOJIWOD ¥TLVM
28°489 swelshs uonoalod - W'eO 09 00T Jionlesay €01 1 Jiedos adid Aousbiows - ws)sAs LORO3|I0D ATddNS 9079 ® SININOJNOD H¥ILVYM
01'98¢ oowues auoldaal vese 00l 22/02/9-22/12/5 Woyy sdojde] 10} 30IAIRS SSB|DUIM - SDIAIDS auoydafal (£29.p€22€)SSTTIHIM NOZININ
Si'vel a0 suoyderel bESZ 001 22114/9-2/81/S Wolj SUONEIS duwind %20083d PUB 0Ip3d UES BY 0} S3SSAIPPE dl alenud - so1ueg suoydale | (55956€ZHZ)SSTTIVIM NOZIYIA
00°'4€8'C sulew o204 % s.ejs dwnd quley 65€2 002 £Z/0€/S-22/4 £/S WOl S199ys BIEp Aojes [ELIRIBLU UIRJUIBW O] - SUOREIS dwng SHIALIDOTIIA
66°LE soolyaA siiedas pue syed €802 00T 081 8# SI0IY9A JO} YSEM JED - SBIIYSA ANIWAVC FLVYHOJHO0D ¥NVE SN
06°6¥} suonduosagns pue sdiysiaqussyy L€12 00} sBuneauw suljuo Jo} Woo7 0} uoduosgns Jeak auo - suopduosqng

ANIWAVL 3LVHOLHOD YINYVE SN




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 6a.

DATE: August 8, 2022

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer }"{

SUBJECT: Discussion and Update on the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project
BACKGROUND:

At the May 20, 2022, Board Meeting, the Board approved the following on the Bayside Acres
Beach Sewer Relocation Project:

e The private sewer lateral and residential pump systems alternative;

e District to contract with a plumbing company for the first year to maintain the 20 pump
stations;

e District to provide a list of plumbing companies that inspect and service these types of
pump systems to the property owners;

e District to make a reasonable effort to screen or hide each control panel and pump-sump
unit against the house, such as in the crawl space or under a deck, by fully or partially
burying it and/or with landscaping or fencing;

e District to file a Categorical Exemption; and

e District staff to proceed with the engineering design of the individual systems in
consultation, as appropriate, with the property owners.

The Board also requested staff to produce further information in regard to a backup power source
for the 20 homes with the proposed private individual pump systems; and for the property
owners of 50/51/53 Beach Drive, to provide a cost estimate to connect them to the existing pump
station at the end of Beach Drive. Nute Engineering and its electrical engineer are currently
performing their research on the backup power and will present a technical report within the next
couple of meetings.

In regard to the homes at 50/51/53 Beach Drive connecting to the District’s pump station, Nute
Engineering has developed a preliminary evaluation to produce a budgetary amount for Board
consideration as described below.

ANALYSIS:

In order for the existing pump station to provide service to 50/51/53 Beach Drive, the pump
station requires a retrofit to accommodate the three households. The sump and pumps will need
to decrease in size for a much smaller volume of storage to minimize the generation of odors; the
50-year-old force main will also need to be replaced with a smaller diameter pipe for the volume



decrease and for its pipe condition. Thus, the site will also need to be retrofitted to accommodate
the changes, as well as a replacement of a new control panel.

The budgetary cost estimate for the design of repurposing the Beach Drive Pump Station is
$16,000 and the construction cost estimate is $191,362, which totals to $207,362.

Since a sanitation agency has a higher level of expectations and responsibilities for pump station
reliability compared to a homeowner, it is the District’s policy to visit each of its 33 pump
stations three times per week for a routine maintenance check. The repurposed pump station
would be unique since it is 2 much smaller station that has a different type of maintenance,
procedure, and equipment. Spare parts will also be unique to the station, unlike the District’s
other pump stations where parts and equipment are similar so that they can be shared with other
stations. Therefore, the District may consider contracting the maintenance to another plumbing
company that specializes in this type of pump station, which would cost approximately $20,000
annually. If the District contracts with another company, staff will need to make sure that the
company maintains the pump station properly. This would take additional staff time.

Since the May 20" meeting, several property owners have communicated to staff that they
believe it would not be fair for these three properties to connect to a District pump station when
the other property owners will be required to own and maintain their individual pump stations. It
may also not be fair to other District ratepayers for the District to maintain the shared pump
system for just three properties. Some districts charge a special fee for maintaining a pump
station for a small number of properties. Therefore, the Board may consider charging a special
fee for these three properties.

Another note to consider is that the District is not only planning for the current set of
circumstances, but also for the future. When one of these three homes sells, the future property
owner may not agree to this special fee and may want to revisit this issue, which is something the
District would like to avoid. In addition, a District pump station makes the District permanently
responsible for what should be an individual responsibility, taking staff time and attention that is
already fully occupied with its core responsibilities.

COSTS ANALYSIS:

Budgetary Cost Estimates:

Design of Repurposing the Beach Drive Pump Station $ 16,000
Construction of Repurposing the Beach Drive Pump Station $191.362
Total $207,362

Annual Maintenance of the Repurposed Beach Dr. Pump Station $ 20,020

If the District decides to implement a special fee for the 50/51/53 Beach Drive properties for the
design and construction of the repurposed pump station, it will cost each owner approximately
$69,120 and an additional $6,675 for annual maintenance.



OPTIONS:

1. Board to approve that 50/51/53 Beach Drive properties may connect to the existing pump
station and direct staff to design for repurposing the pump station.

2. If Board approves Option 1, Board to decide if there will be a special fee and the amount.

3. Board to direct staff to design a private individual pump station for each of the properties
at 50/51/53 Beach Drive.

4. Provide other direction to staff.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Board to discuss and choose one of the options above.

Attachment: August 5, 2022, Nute Engineering’s Beach Drive Pump Station Repurpose
Evaluation



www.nute.biz

907 Mission Ave | San Rafael, CA 94901 | Phone 415-453-4480 | Fax 415-453-0343 |

NVIE

Civil and Sanitary Consultants

August 5, 2022

Ms. Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer
San Rafael Sanitation District

111 Morphew St.

San Rafael, CA 94901

Re: San Rafael Sanitation District — Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project
Beach Drive Pump Station Repurpose Evaluation

Dear Doris:

Per your request we are pleased to provide this evaluation of the tasks required for retrofit and
repurposing of the District’s Beach Drive Pump Station.

BACKGROUND

Beach Drive Pump Station is operated by the San Rafael Sanitation District and is a submersible
pump station located at the lower dead end of Beach Drive in the Bayside/Beach area. This pump
station serves several residences on lower Beach Drive (#50, #51, and #53) and it also serves six
residences which front onto San Francisco Bay on Oak Drive. The Oak Drive homes discharge
sewage flows through buried private laterals to the historical District gravity sewer main buried
below the beach in the intertidal zone.

On May 20, 2022, in a special Board
meeting, the San Rafael Sanitation
District Board voted unanimously to
proceed with the design for
replacement of the existing buried
beach gravity sewers with new
residential private sewer pump
systems. These new residential
pump systems would pump the
household sewage up the hill to
newly extended gravity sewers in the
streets above the homes (Oak
Drive).

Beach Drive Pump Station

SRSD Beach PS Repurpose Evaluation-signed.docx 1



During this Board meeting homeowners for #50, #51, and #53 brought to the Board’s attention
their viewpoint that the

existing Beach Drive Pump Station could be repurposed to just serve their three homes. These
homes are the closest homes to the pump station and do not have a lateral which is within the
intertidal area of the beach.

The District sewer system map below shows how these three houses are located in proximity to
the Beach Drive Pump Station which pumps the sewage to a manhole at the intersection of Marina
Drive and Beach Drive.

. v
MH2266 & 2601

MH2284
~a,

If the Beach Drive Pump Station is repurposed to serve three (3) houses, the pump station would
become a District owned and operated “shared” pump station.

RECOMMENDED PUMP STATION MODIFICATIONS

The pumps in a sewage pump station are designed to meet the expected sewage loading (capacity)
for both dry and wet weather. The pumps are also selected to meet the demands of the total
dynamic head required to “lift” the sewage out of the low area where the pump station is located,
to a nearby gravity system manhole at an elevation higher than the pump station. Modern pump
stations, both large and small are highly reliable. However, a sanitation district expects a higher
level of reliability for their pump station because in the event of a pump system failure, a public
agency such as the San Rafael Sanitation District, is held to a higher level of responsibility than
the general public would be for an individual private pump system.

Therefore, to repurpose the existing Beach Drive Pump Station into a reliable pump system serving
only 3 houses, the existing pump station needs to be modified for the lower volume sewage flows
to minimize the generation of odors to prevent storage of a large volume of raw sewage. The
existing pump station also has age related damage to systems which should be improved during a
retrofit process, including the noticeable reduction of cross sectional area in the buried discharge
force main from tuberculation, corrosive damage to the aged wetwell coating, and a corroded
wetwell hatch.

SRSD Beach PS Repurpose Evaluation-signed.docx 2



The purpose of this report is to evaluate the modifications required to repurpose the Beach Drive
Pump Station. The following modifications are described:

Install new 155 lineal foot 4 inch high density polyethylene pipe force main adjacent and
parallel to the existing aged cast iron pipe force main and connect to existing valve pit. If
this is planned properly, there will be no disruption of service to the three homes listed
above.

Install temporary sewage bypass in existing manhole on the bayside of pump station
wetwell, by installing a pipe through the wetwell to the manhole, and installing temporary
submersible pumps in the manhole. The temporary bypass pumps will be connected to the
newly constructed force main.

Demolish existing wetwell concrete deck slab only, retain valve pit deck with hatch.
Remove the two existing pumps, pump rails and pump mounts. Clean concrete wetwell.

Reduce 8 foot diameter wetwell to 4 foot diameter to reduce storage capacity pump station
to minimize odor generation. This will be done by installing Flygt pump system TOPS
sump basin insert with a 48 inch diameter PVC pipe section as a liner. The annular space
between the old concrete wetwell wall and new liner will be grouted. Construct new
concrete deck and hatch.

Install new, smaller, District Standard Flygt submersible pumps and Flygt pump controls.

Reinstate new pump connections to existing valve pit piping, remove bypass system and
reinstate pump station operation.

PROJECT COST ESTIMATE FOR REPURPOSING OF BEACH DRIVE PUMP STATION

Task # | Description Estimated Costs
1. Install 155 LF 4" HDPE Force Main and pave at $250/LF $ 38,750
2. Install temporary sewage bypass system in existing manhole S 8,000
3. Demolish existing wetwell concrete deck slab and existing pump S 10,000

system
4, Reduce 8' diameter wetwell capacity, construct new deck S 40,000
5. Install new duplex pump system and pump control panel S 35,000
6. Reinstate pump station flow and remove bypass system $ 10,000
Subtotal 5141,750
35% Contingency S 49,612
Total $191,362

SRSD Beach PS Repurpose Evaluation-signed.docx 3




ESTIMATED PUMP STATION MAINTENANCE EFFORT

District pump station maintenance policy is to visit pump stations three (3) times per week to verify
operation of all systems. The below cost estimate is based on a quote from an area service vendor.

ANNUAL ESTIMATED PUMP STATION MAINTENANCE COST

Task # | Description

Estimated Costs

1. Three (3) maintenance visits per week at $350 per visit $ 18,200
10% Contingency S 1,820
Total $20,020
Beach Drive Pump Station Valve Pit
Very truly yours,
NUTE ENGINEERING
L j ...r-' ."/ /‘_|
i o AL
By: o 4 ( (:— ; P
Mark T. Wilson, P.E.
4

SRSD Beach PS Repurpose Evaluation-signed.docx




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 7.a.

DATE: August 8, 2022

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer 7;

SUBJECT: Report on Bid Opening for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement

Project, Phase 2, and Adopt Resolution to Award Contract

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt resolution awarding contract to W. R. Forde Associates, Inc., for the 2020 Sewer Pipe
Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 2, in the amount of $6,142,198.

BACKGROUND:

As part of the 80-Year Gravity Main Lifecycle Replacement Program, it is the District’s goal to
replace 1.6 miles of pipe per year. The District has completed its 10-year list of Capital
Improvement Projects. In order for the District to develop future projects, the District plans to
televise and assess more than 10 miles of sewer main, including its manholes, every one to two
years. The pipes and manholes are assessed using a North American standard rating system,
Pipeline Assessment Certification Program (PACP), supported by the National Association of
Sewer Services Companies.

In 2019, the District televised and assessed approximately 10 miles of sewer main and manholes
throughout central and southern San Rafael, using the PACP rating system. In 2020, the District
signed a Professional Services Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler to perform the analysis for the
2019 Pipeline Condition Assessment Report and compile a list of sewers recommended for
replacement. During their analysis, Schaaf & Wheeler identified five locations that needed urgent
repairs. Therefore, District staff decided to break the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement
Project into two phases. Phase 1 was the five urgent repairs that were completed last year.

Phase 2 consists of repairing and replacing short segments of pipe and pipes between manholes,
which total approximately 2.3 miles of sewer main. The pipe sizes range from 6 inches to 21
inches in diameter, and they are located in the Dominican, Gerstle Park, Downtown, and Francisco
Boulevard West neighborhoods. The pipes will be replaced by either open trench or pipe bursting
methods. This project will also include the replacement of 210 lower laterals and will rehabilitate
27 manholes, which will take approximately ten months to complete.

On July 1, 2022, and July 15, 2022, the District published a notice inviting bids for the 2020 Sewer
Pipe Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 2, and bids were opened on August 1, 2022.



The following is the Engineer’s Estimate and a list of the bids received:

Engineer’s Estimate $6.844.100.00
W.R. Ford Associates, Inc. $6,142,198.00
Cratus, Inc. $6,502,384.50
Mitchell Engineering $6,553,171.00
K. J. Woods Construction, Inc. $6,988,000.00
Glosage Engineering, Inc. $7,259,865.50
Maggiora & Ghilotti, Inc. $7,457,457.00
Argonaut Constructors $7,722,389.50
JMB Construction, Inc. $7,808,355.00

Please see the attached bid summary for an itemized breakdown of the items.

ANALYSIS:

The Engineer’s Estimate for the bid was $6,844,100.00. W. R. Forde Associates, Inc., with a bid
of $6,142,198.00, was the lowest responsible bidder for this project. They are also the same
contractor for the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project, Phase A, which will begin
construction on August 15, 2022.

The District’s engineering consultant, Schaaf & Wheeler, has reviewed their submitted bid
package and has recommend that this project be awarded to W. R. Forde Associates.

FISCAL IMPACT:

W. R. Forde’s total bid amount is $6,142,198.00. This construction project will be funded under
the 80-Year Life Cycle Sewer Replacement Program from the FY 2022-23 Budget.

OPTIONS:

1) Staff recommends that the Board award the contract to W. R. Forde Associates, Inc.

2) The Board may reject all bids and rebid the project. Staff does not recommend this option
since this will delay the start of construction until into the rainy season, and construction costs
may increase due to the cost climate.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the resolution awarding contract to W. R. Forde Associates,
Inc., for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 2, in the amount of
$6,142,198.00.

Attachments:
1. Schaaf & Wheeler Recommendation Letter
2. Bid Summary
3. Resolution



Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS

2200 Range Avenue, Ste. 201
Santa Rosa, CA 95403
707-528-4848

August 2, 2022

Doris Toy

District Manager/District Engineer
San Rafael Sanitation District

111 Morphew Street

San Rafael, CA 94901

Subject: 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 2
Results of Bid Opening on August 1, 2022

Dear Doris,

On August 1, 2022 eight (8) bids were received for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement
Project, Phase 2. A tabulation comparing the bids is attached for reference. The apparent lowest
responsive bidder is W.R. Forde Associates, Inc. with a Total Bid in the amount of $6,142,198.

W.R. Forde Associates, Inc. has a current Contractor’s license and is registered with the Department
of Industrial Relations (DIR). The proposed subcontractors also have current Contractor’s licenses
and are currently registered with the DIR. Contractor license and DIR registration details are
attached for reference.

We have reviewed the submitted bid package for both responsiveness and responsibility. Based on
our review, we recommend that the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 2 be
awarded to W.R. Forde Associates, Inc.

Best regards,
Schaaf & Wheeler

Benjamin L. Shick, PE
Vice President

Santa Clara » San Francisco « SantaRosa e Salinas



clo}

7z0z ‘1 )snany

IV 00:01 {3uuadQ pig

i<y 5 ITEs s 0S8 0g 005 18 g WIS 8 S8 233 s 33 [ 9% sRunpR N g W& pausecl| 11 Mz
I88'E 1§ bs SPI'TIS S £% NZR'OTS os: UL ES nis KT 1LE 68 RR'ETS et < €5 51T (0L FES m saunp waw e woqap apanoglf a1 | oee | osr
6§ s 15 TT8$ 0 is N 1S s $H9 (1§ 8 1S g IH6S £S5 05§ s SLi'TS <5 sAury ey watnae | amplawaf 4y b
SRR Cis 20'1S oS 1§ 15 REE TS 05 (TS KR cis ol |5 LTS <13 bhzo'is 0585 & (owseg) Suding yevssaun] 47 o
ISE'LS s SULE 0gs ULE 1 0% NLTI§ g SLE'EIS s EERE NSt LS is NSE'LE D6 TS 0§ (uuaunuan) fwding yewssoagl g1 <+ "
ey Ths E0C9zs Zrs SLEE 0% LSE KIS LIS It (7 BRT'0CE IS 9TE PaYY LIRS T COr'6% 353 (aapper]) duiding yjrusso)| r
NYVS 98 1998 |_Fw 0995 013 L1 N1g 668 % DLLS LT 1095 5 99§ 0% 00l 15 [IES Furyiepy e g aeg) doig Ay
WS I3 18§ g s S1$ LECIS L5 pTis nis 965 o5 I <5 s 5 WIS s FUNIRA TUAWIA AR 170 L YITUS,, ATLA, ol
HIBS s RS nois KHITS nczs TEIS cols MEI$ Dels lz16s bl WIRE nots WIRS ho1s 00S'FS 009§ FUMIvA A e A5t ARAproy paITys e
NaF'TE DETES 0T i 00 ¢ ki’ 1§ S0L'ES reis Sb'ES 0698 SELTE 168 e 3 (EES Wl Osks NSL €8 OELS fmding 1821 ,ONIX TOOLIS MO8, $ L
WL'TE DI 0L <§ nelg DE9F iEhs ISOES £7Ts DRL'ES DTS 60 €5 FALS DOL TS neLs 0L i 15 00068 006§ Fuding 183 LJOLS. X1 9E
HHTCOLE NLIS MUY LS ors NS TOTS S5 S NS nE'TTs 33 WALl 1S |oges 'L 1§ 1939 M iEIE FES 000°SOFS 6% O youall | AS anst g€
N0'TRYS 1§ 00'0FFS wzs 000655 1§ 00DEES 173 WNVLIES e czs NNLLE =3 00 0S<$ 73 i 8L £ LRI [lis3 Sposgpuepunn 7| A8 izt | ke
KNizs 00 0TS LS 105 2§ WIS oon'nls WIrS$ ili'Rs LTS 000'015 g T1 FOS'EIS irEs non'cs 100 8§ ono'Rs 000°SS 000'<$ (ApapurjA) SImpua) [eisugl 8T 1 13
0€ LS WL €8 0E‘ZLS (S ES 00" 1§, 0T 7§ I0S'RTS g 18 00'LSE oo €§. LS6'0ES £01'zT§ NS'LEE ngze p0N'L<F 00§ LFS WS'TS Ul Anppoy aaejday R oy o
0£ T8 H0CE NG 6 inil |5 QUDERY (I LIRS 59 NS+ s REETIS 20715 NS ELs iuig 15 NOSTE|§ NE FS 33 sfluny apran aoyuey Moo : 1
09 BT 0095 NP EIS oF 1§ WLEIS no'1s )66 S 1E ncH1s Wy 615 [y zI6 L8 26515 000TES 000'zs IS 1EF 008'615 00K’ 1S 19307 Pur dwies] AUy 0r|day 1"
I08'L§ LS ST1E1S £7CS LI inik$ 00001 iir$ NETE wig ETERE 1TEE LS ES sy N0S'T1S IKICS s 1% Uy MpPE] AJagUrAL A WUy T3
W00 £ 1SS 0618 ERS NG 6§ (LS UET ETS 10 ts WEF IS Hnnes LLLVEMS ALY DOS €5 3518 108" LSS oczs 0Ng'I-£§ 00S° 1% FEAI] AEETy e ET RT
INFLES YOI 00R 15 MO'ESS DNS'TH Wrt§ nno'cs WNzTS DNn' 1§ r19°THS LEOIR HDO'CES oS 1% N'FPS non'zs 0n0LLE N0S ES 119AU] PUR YaudY Ajoyuey uoofayirday [0y i
W00'9T8 n0‘TES NS N05'615 g1 WEETE 1§ b 1§ PSELLS 366'¢s 00s'61$ W 1% NS'TES hoczs [T WRFER Funsmg adig 13 aqaIEy SPpHAY €1 oz
WA LS nDR'ss s nON'os ne L% hng'es 0F ORS 00T'ES 00¢'Z8 SLOFSS rLI'ES MRS kTS R RIS DNO'ES 00g'IcIs Lt s . L LT ST
D01CIS bl 518 0068 111 6% 0O0IS 00 015 0T TS Nz zls WFIS i r1s PE1 RIS FELRIS ICL'RE e sy 100 RS 000 55 ol [IRISUT R 1A BUIppey] Aauuey ] T
09 L0 i TIS 00 ORS. (Es n00'SES (KK 9% 00 0n1S g zis N0 TIS 00 F1S BFOGS1S RR'61$ I00°0L$ NSL %S 100 088 s soquey saeplay  owny| v % X
LIS nonzis (%N ann ors NS TER gLIE Sk VES BOO'TIS LLlpisy D0N'Z LS L66 TOR 666'07S NG ST M KT W'PTS hon'ss 0N'NES Ajoquey wON [esuy| Vi % T
LSS 5 ' 1A% TS (T 0SS i 15 MRFCR 'l 1£4'728 NS PS g 1% 000'6$ iRKi'ES W68 THNIES afoyuey Mewwyy| v 8 1z
YIS ofs IHG £TS <r§. ORI 323 neLs oS 0< ELS s ANTIES 0R0'LS 5is oS ozs 0ry'0ls 0zs 1239 LILJICS LOpUE(Y | zec
ELEiY NOR €5 (TR [ 00055 1 00§ SE HRIRTE 0008 N0 €S 00’15 I LR[S nOS'£% NRLE LiiEs LU 000" P UnIRIUULT [RIE] 2inday| I3
Y 106'8$ W00'ETHS 31 65 INN'OLES (s N0L SP1§ (LI 0$'0LS 5’15 LEL1ETS 09 TELS NS'POIS iis™ss YRS WhIES uonmnr gsmgl adig 1w rRImr] s asejday| Lh N
L L S T L 1S MUEETIE  ooL'Ls v LESE {415 NE FPTE 1515 WE9EH ' NI LSS (05 £ 000'TSY$ IS g RN ) e ) B e 1 Ll
EEOTIS clis DHK'GE IS NR'TSIS 00Hs €0 615 SGES WEERIS 08K i 1015 N0R'ZS 1§ nors HELPOF [srzs 0L £€15 0S1 auparyday yauas g uadg yau W
s 91918 frizs STORHG 1S WELGO TS fioes S 151 TH nLcs SIS 9 Ts  Jocrs DT LOF 1S DSSISI T e L6ERE1S  [Rezs ANCErL 1S [ luawade|day yauar ualo) yaui-x
198 BLET 061s )T 665 D1Es 595 0RES co0ig T E1LE oLis 1TS SRS OFbS, RIS LS )CC9LS 0cEs stTTIcs cazs 0S7°L8FS 0575 wawaariday] yaussj uadqy yaui-a) vl
<FLLICS £118 LO'TTSE 61 I1L'6IME LS 790" LELS FLZS 0T 1"€99% s DI SL9°1TYS <TT$ 0T1'€Y98 Ty 0L 0608 [l Funsmg adt, | youl-g| 3l
1S6 IS Ik 100 6OTS 1028 S5 8015 i S SI1 8T8 LTS N6 6TTH nzzs ot £9% STT T 08 EUETS ugzs 0E7' 1978 nezs Aunsiag] adigg oui-g
10T LI$ 60§ 1R 95 1% M9'SLS noE' 1S RCT €5 LLSE WK LES ns 66 NES PSS Doid 15 61§ ooss Waries NS (1 AT TACH L T W) edy yauny) uad) yoaur-| 2
I 665 ErS 0e'CLIS imcs MS'LLIS 0LLE £56 ETIS cres 0E SIS <s 75 068 NST'ELIF hcLs NETOLE €S 1 (1114 0CHS ‘€060 DA W91 UMW) eday yauai uadi) yaur-¢|
TH noES Z1Sls 705 T D0oS RT LIS ONES BT LIS nsbs e €18 iIELS 005 Nz IS zes 009718 fces oy youar) uadoyn-y| g 9E f
IRY'LPE 109'6ES nnrs STTHLE <7y £99' LS5 1869 DFE'ROS nots Koh bES HES nce ORD'LbS nzes 00L EFS 00ES neday) yanasg uade) yaui-u| ¥
OR'L§ ERIDNY oS DIEY (TIEarY s iy S n0o'r§ 156 FS ECLTS N0 8§ (CERY 000'C1S Lo zIS HIN'8S w88 Hiralagg ey i | i L

#16TS anyets 000'LS g LY NNS'6S WIS O0'r 1S WIS N0$'7s 90 128 ngLES ey inr<r s 000'68 000'NrS 00N KS aeday jodg yaur-yj § 0
M0 TYS I00'S9 000 S8 D06'0T 1S %6 MOVEIS Lairets N00'0ZS 000 2§ ey NS LOS e 23 IARES 006§ [ICRTES i L5 ELa e Bt il <
NI SIS i 05, 100'6L$ HNTSLS D00 '§ 1§ s 1S o0 Ts TS <06 $T§ £06'RTS 00 091§ 000 NE§ 0008 1$ iETIE LS (1188 HFDRS Furdy] pue Audum, | ssed (g anrodiag I r

LAY 01 LS T IS 000 00ES 1Pz SIS |2 E1§ WNTLSS nnn'§58 00 RSTS 0N1'RRTS BHICRS Dno'css WCENEITEY WS 000'0S 1§ NOO' DL [LLALE S shnarig pue ooy Augangg 1 s
00 (05§ TINICS 100’ 807§ i WS W1 0SS, PAEE 0nNe'ayls g 90(§ 100°071$ TS N0'0TTS isirices 001315 00°0S 15 115 15 IS I ELS suaneAa N pue 1o atea] aike) wetsapad] s 1 2

DI [P0 10 %€ Pan~] N VG

TR S TS WHIBSTS Huinezs WAISES NNINISES 00 FTES 0 FICS BUIITES WNTes WirSees 000 €T€S WTRITS M (ITS WINSTS INNINETS dinloois oS sosunar] 29 SR (LIS dOuAaep|  §1 ' I

oy g frunoury peroy faapgaen | MY amagmun | 0MY sang wan | Y [ onig n oWy | Y Lo s | UMY Jaapgmn | U0V | saneg wun et

(21N moL o) v c)e L oL ey, may, wopdisag| wn | mp |war
s10jansuo) jneuaday | | o - . ..uu_._ oUT UOHINNSUOS Sunsamsug Py u) 'smTI) U1 .mu:m_uwmmaw ALVWLLSH
monyn B va0iidey | ‘Sunawsug adesel) SPOOAA Y ApIoy UM SATIANIONT
L 9 S v € 4 I
157 Sty AMVIWIANS S1L1NSTAY aid

TASYHA "1D3I0Nd INFWADVIdEIY ANY HIVdAAY Adld HAMTS 0702
VINUOIITYD ‘AINNOD NIIVIN
LOTUISIA NOILVLINVS TAVAVY NVS




Tz

sap A Y
EYS NN A
ol onn 000
0Lr non Lk
9B 1 880 w0
[ e e L T e | N (=78
sap [N ¥
=L sap WA
B A sap

ETR!

1vas 3 g

g adingg npan Ve
uieiq] 2 fwqungg w1

e |

I |

0y % dding api
el  fuquingd 43|

"

[ seprry aaumpdwon &

&

panwgns (oday npaisy) suot

1T

£S5 AR

) 15 3N 1894 2aRE]

7y asuatnds =] 193l0l ]

XN 2 Anrgisundsayy

WRUL] JUAWANS SAIDPIE]

180 Aa1-Rnic]

ARPLITV TISIA IS

L S el

NUYOIOVAINOMINS

HSEOONOONT GORLONNOOT TIFRFODODT ISQUNN AICT
OLIFSL RRSLRO £ERETNE IDUINN ASUIL ] S10)DEIU0T)
EJS 1an
2L (BT R LT |
SIA oG ywenunsy
A s (9
[ r [3 3aApa) souyay (shunpuappy
i Y%l € %Ot I E Yol £ Yl b T XPWU 7,6 129!
SEC MW LS HEHRT TIL'LS LSFLEES RS STRAET LS (MY K TS [ NS THRE'TNS'IS [ alrEss [TYLOL
00°TH [1iie 78 ST 0575 LI s HN'0TH e uzs 00 ¢ gl €8 001§ (LIRS DURSY TTTESY NS T§ €28 (s c§, withi S§ §1 1 e
KLEE (e} 3 1$T5 £% 15 LU RS 007§ ils nnzs mT'LTS FbSS E'TS nes NS 1S Ol onn'nzs kg AD ¢ 13
00'SES 00'06§ e 09§ 15 Was1E Ves Wik 1 NN8'<Ts % IS s 0008 1§ n5s 000 0ES 0es augey Aunaojuiay i esodsic eudsy| nor | ower |osr
0T 18 008 a0 zs 00 €8 00 €5 Gy NS TH e 1§ HET' 8BS nE1'RS Slirar Y L T8 N00°TH LTS 00O FE [ELEE Y JuaLw: DY WUAWNUDJA PaI5] Vi 1 iy
oy [ |penowry wog |amd ] Y Jopanun] Y fsougnun | Y [sug i | MUY Jowgamn | MUY Jaaugnun | U0 Jasug un | T | aanag aun e
HoL 2oL, feyey, 1ejo), e300, oL (I 1v)0L, vondrnasag| wn | nd | wan
" 2ul }Inajsuo’y u_.:u-sn < k ul oul nul :em«u_—.:m_.—no M_._T.@o:_w:nm L RITY Y] up —m_.-«ﬂ._o ol »gﬂ._uﬂhr.{ H-—.A«—Z—.—nmﬁ
uoyINASUO) JINF w0y 7 vaorddely | ‘Funsanduy adusoln SPOSAL T SR04 THM SHMIANIONT
[ L 9 S ¥ € T 1




2 «
. ug CONTRACTORS STATE LICENSE BOARD
& [ EEEO 3

©Contractor's License Detail for License # 1025853

DISCLAIMER: A license status check provides information taken from the CSLB license database. Before
relying on this information, you should be aware of the following limitations.

»  CSLB complalnt disclosure Is restricted by law {B&P 7124.6) If this entity is subject to public camplaint disctosure click on fink that will appear below for more
informatlon, Click here for a definition of disclasable actions.

» Only ion related civil A t CSLB are disclosed (B&P T071.17).

Arbitrations are nat listed unless the contractor fails to comply with the terms.

Due to warkload, there may be relevant information that has nat yet been entered Into the baard’s license database.

Data current as of 8/2/2022 2:32:43 PM

W R FORDE ASSOCIATES INC
984 HENSLEY ST
RICHMOND, CA 94801
Business Phone Number:(510) 215-9338

Entity Corporation

Issue Date 04/17/2017
Expire Date 04/30/2023

This license Is current and active,

All information below should be reviewed.

A- GENERAL ENGINEERING

B - GENERAL BUILDING

€21 - BUILDING MOVING, DEMOLITION

Certifications

v

HAZ - HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES REMOVAL

Contractor's Bond

This license filed 3 Contractor's Bond with FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND.
Bond Number: 5234264
Bond Amount: $15,000
Effective Date: 03/23/2017

Bond of Qualifying individual
The qualifying individual DONALD JAMES RUSSELL certified that he/she owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock/membership interest
of this company; therefore, the Bond of Qualifying Individual is not required.
Effective Date: 04/17/2017

Workers' Compensalion
This license has workers compensation insurance with the TRAVELERS PROPERTY CASUALTY COMPANY OF AMERICA
Policy Number:UB3R0239%A
Effective Date: 10/01/2020

Expire Date: 10/01/2022
Workers' Compensation History

» Personnel listed on this license {current or disassociated) are listed on other licenses.

Back to Top Conditions of Use Privacy Policy Accessibility Accessibility Certification

Copyright © 2022 State of California



8/2/22, 2:19 PM hitps://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails

Contractor Information Registration History
Legal Entity Name Effective Date Expiration Date
W.R. FORDE ASSOCIATES INC.

Legal Entity Type 6/20/2018 6/30/2019
Corporation

Status 6/1/2017 6/30/2018
Active

Registration Number 4/17/2017 6/30/2017
1000048412

Registration effective date 7/1/2019 6/30/2022
7/1/2022

Registration expiration date 71172022 6/30/2025
6/30/2025

Mailing Address

984 HENSLEY ST. RICHMOND 94801 CA United ...
Physical Address

984 HENSLEY ST. RICHMOND 94801 CA United ...
Email Address

Trade Name/DBA

License Number(s)

CSLB:1025853

Legal Entity Information

Corporation Number:
Federal Employment Identification Number:
President Name:
Donald Russell

Vice President Name:
Treasurer Name:
Candace Clapp
Secretary Name:
Donald Russell

CEO Name:

Donald Russell

Agent of Service Name:

Donald Russell

Agent of Service Mailing Address:

984 Hensley St Richmond 94801 CA United States of America

Workers Compensation

Do you lease employees No
through Professional

https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails 12



8/2/22, 2:19 PM https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails

Employer Organization
(PEO)?:

Please provide your
current workers

compensation insurance
information below:

PEO PEO PEO
PEO InformationName Phone Email

Insured by Carrier

Policy Holder Name:W.R.FORDE ASSOCIATES INC.Insurance Carrier:

TRAVELERS PROPERTY CASUALTY COMPANY OF AMERICAPolicy Number:UB-3R02399A
Inception date:10/1/2021Expiration Date:10/1/2022

https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails 2/2



..o
Homg g CONTRACTORS STATE LICENSE BOARD

B R

€ Contractor's License Detail for License # 878364

DISCLAIMER: A license status check provides information taken from the CSLB license database. Before

relying on this information, you should be aware of the following limitations.

»  CSLB complaint disclosure is restricted by law (B&P 7124.6) If this entity is subject to public complaint disclosure click on link that will appear below for more
information. Click here for a definition of disclosable actions

+  Only construction related civil judgments reporied to CSLB are disclosed (B&P 7071.17)
+  Arbitrations are not listed tinless the contractor fails to comply with the terms.

+  Due to workload, there may be retevant information that has not yet been entered into the board's license database

Data current as of 8/2/2022 2:30:03 PM

H &R PLUMBING AND DRAIN CLEANING INC
dba H & R UNDERGROUND

4221 APPIAN WAY
EL SOBRANTE, CA 94803
Business Phone Number:(510) 222-5556

Entity Corporation

Issue Date 05/24/2006
Reissue Date 04/26/2012
Expire Date 04/30/2024

This license is current and active.

Allinformation below should be reviewed.

» C36-PLUMBING

> C42-SANITATION SYSTEM

Contractor's Bond

This license filed a Contractor's Bond with OHIO CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY (THE).
Bond Number: 255358C
Bond Amount: 515,000
Effective Date: 08/26/2019
Contractor's Bond History

Bond of Qualifying tndividual
The qualifying individual HORACIO FRANCO certified that he/she owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock/membership interest of this
company; therefore, the Bond of Qualifying Individual is not required.
Effective Date: 04/26/2012

This license has workers compensation insurance with the CYPRESS INSURANCE COMPANY
Policy Number:HRW(C219490

Effective Date: 12/01/2021

Expire Date: 12/01/2022

Workers' Compensation History

»  04/26/2012 - LICENSE REISSUED TO ANOTHER ENTITY



8/2/22, 2:28 PM

Contractor Information

Legal Entity Name

H & R PLUMBING AND DRAIN CLEANING, INC.
Legal Entity Type

Corporation

Status

Active

Registration Number

1000009915

Registration effective date

7/1/2020

Registration expiration date

6/30/2023

Mailing Address

4221 APPIAN WAY EL SOBRANTE 94803 CA Unit...
Physical Address

4221 APPIAN WAY EL SOBRANTE 94803 CA Unit...
Email Address

Trade Name/DBA

H & R PLUMBING AND DRAIN CLEANING, INC.
License Number(s)

CSLB:878364

CSLB:878364

Legal Entity Information

Corporation Number:
C2900133

Federal Employment Identification Number:
President Name:
HORACIO FRANCO
Vice President Name:
ALEJANDRA FRANCO
Treasurer Name:
HORACIO FRANCO
Secretary Name:
ALEJANDRA FRANCO
CEO Name:
HORACIO FRANCO

Agent of Service Name:

ALEJANDRA FRANCO

Agent of Service Mailing Address:

3990 LA CIMA ROAD EL SOBRANTE 94803 CA United States of America

Workers Combpensation

https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails

Effective Date

5/1/2018

5/8/2017

5/10/2016

6/26/2015

2/23/2015

7/1/2019

7/1/2020

https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails

Registration History

Expiration Date

6/30/2019

6/30/2018

6/30/2017

6/30/2016

6/30/2015

6/30/2020

6/30/2023

1/2



8/2/22, 2:28 PM https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails

Do you lease employees No
through Professional
Employer Organization
(PEO)?:
Please provide your
current workers
compensation insurance
information below:
PEO PEO PEO
PEO InformationName Phone Email

Insured by Carrier

Policy Holder Name:H & R PLUMBING AND DRAIN CLEANING, INC.Insurance Carrier:
Cypress Insurance Co.Policy Number:HRWC014394Inception date:12/1/2019
Expiration Date:12/1/2020

https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails 212



Pz,
Hom __'.'!; CONTRACTORS STATE LICENSE BOARD

3[R

€ Contractor's License Detail for License # 883985

DISCLAIMER: A license status check provides information taken from the CSLB license database. Before
relying on this information, you should be aware of the following limitations.

» CSLB complalnt disclosure is restricted by law (B&P T124.6} If this entity is subject to public complaint disclosure click on link that will appear below for more
information, Click here for a definition of disclosable actlons

»  Only constructlon related civil judgments reported to CSLB are disclosed (B&P 707117}
»  Arbitrations are not lIsted unless the contractor falls to comply with the terms,

»  Due to workload, there may be relevant information that has not yet been entered into the board's license database

Data current as of 8/2/2022 2:35:00 PM

BAYSIDE STRIPE & SEAL INC
P O BOX 703
PETALUMA, CA 94953
Business Phone Number:{707) 765-2871

Entity Corporation
Issue Date 09/12/2006
Reissue Date 05/11/2010
Expire Date 05/31/2024

This license is current and active.

Allinformation below should be reviewed,

> (32- PARKING AND HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT

» C27-LANDSCAPING

Contractor's Bond

This license filed a Contractor's Bond with OLD REPUBLIC SURETY COMPANY.
Bond Number: W150056851
Bond Amount;: $15,000
Effective Date: 01/01/2016
Contractor's Bond History

Bond of Qualifying Individual
The qualifying individual RAMY ANTHONY MUGHANNAM certified that he/she owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock/membership
interest of this company; therefore, the Bond of Qualifying Individual is not required.
Effective Date: 05/11/2010

This license has workers compensation insurance with the STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND
Policy Number:9253517

Effective Date: 05/04/2022

Expire Date: 05/04/2023

Workers' Compensation History

» 05/11/2010 - LICENSE REISSUED TO ANOTHER ENTITY

Backto Top Conditions of Use Privaey Policy Accessibility Accessibility Certification

Copyright © 2022 State of California



8/2/22, 2:26 PM https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails

Contractor Information Registration History

Legal Entity Name Effective Date Expiration Date

BAYSIDE STRIPE & SEAL, INC.

Legal Entity Type 6/21/2018 6/30/2019
Corporation

Status 6/12/2017 6/30/2018
Active

Registration Number 6/13/2016 6/30/2017
1000001757

Registration effective date 6/18/2015 6/30/2016
7/1/2022

Registration expiration date 10/30/2014 6/30/2015
6/30/2023

Mailing Address 7/1/2019 6/30/2020
P.O. BOX 703 PETALUMA 94953 CA United State...

Physical Address 7/1/2020 6/30/2021
335 BLODGETT ST. COTATI 94931 CA United Sta...

Emall 2ddiess 7/1/2021 6/30/2022
Trade Name/DBA

License Number(s) 7/1/2022 6/30/2023
CSLB:883985

CSLB:883985

Legal Entity Information

Corporation Number:

Federal Employment Identification Number:
President Name:

Ramy A Mughannam

Vice President Name:

Treasurer Name:

Kathleen M. Mughannam

Secretary Name:

CEO Name:

Agent of Service Name:
Ramy Mughannam
Agent of Service Mailing Address:

P.O. Box 703 PETALUMA 94953 CA United States of America

Workers Compensation

Do you lease employees No
through Professional

https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails

1/2



8/2/22, 2:26 PM https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails

Employer Organization
(PEO)?:

Please provide your
current workers

compensation insurance
information below:

PEO PEO PEO
PEO InformationName Phone Email

Insured by Carrier

Policy Holder Name:BAYSIDE STRIPE & SEAL, INC.Insurance Carrier:

State Compensation Insurance FundPolicy Number:925351722Inception date:5/4/2022
Expiration Date:5/3/2023

https://cadir.secure.force.com/ContractorSearch/PrintRegDetails 212



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 22-1249
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

AWARDING CONTRACT TO W. R. FORDE ASSOCIATES, INC.
FOR THE 2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT, PHASE 2

WHEREAS, sealed bids or proposals were received by the San Rafael
Sanitation District for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 2,
and all such bids were publicly opened, examined, and declared; and

WHEREAS, the bid or proposal of W. R. Forde Associates, Inc., at the
quotation stated in their bid, was and is the lowest responsible bid or proposal; and

WHEREAS, the District's consulting engineer, Schaaf & Wheeler, after
review and evaluation, has recommended award of the contract to W. R. Forde
Associates, Inc.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Chair and
Secretary are authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the San Rafael Sanitation
District with W. R. Forde Associates, Inc., for construction of the 2020 Sewer Pipe
Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 2, in accordance with the terms, specifications,
and general provisions of said bid or proposal.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all other bids or proposals are hereby
rejected, and the District Manager/District Engineer is directed to return all

accompanying certified checks, cash, and bonds of said unsuccessful bidders.



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation
District Board of Directors held on the 8th day of August 2022 by the following vote,
to wit:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:

Kate Colin, Chair

ATTEST:

Maribeth Bushey, Secretary



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 7.b.

DATE: August 8, 2022

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer 7’/

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Authorizing the District Managet/District Engirieer to

Sign a Second Amendment to Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for
Construction Related Services for Phase 2 of the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair
and Replacement Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to sign a second Amendment
to Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for additional design and construction related services for
Phase 2 of the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project from the amount of $342,000 to
the amount of $477,381.00.

BACKGROUND:

On August 6, 2020, the District entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Schaaf &
Wheeler for design related services for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project. The
District amended its Agreement on May 6, 2021, to add construction management services for the
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 1, due to existing shortages in District
staff. Schaaf & Wheeler assisted the District in overseeing the contractor during Phase 1 of
construction.

Schaaf & Wheeler has now reached its Agreement amount of $342,000 for performing design and
construction management services for Phase 1 and design services for Phase 2. During the design
work for Phase 2, Schaaf & Wheeler provided additional design work for utility potholing,
surveying, pavement repair locations, and additional sewer replacements beyond their original
scope of work per District staff’s direction. Staff has also requested them to design the relocation
of a sewer main from an easement between 445 Francisco Boulevard East (Toyota Marin) and 475
Francisco Boulevard East (Infinity of Marin) to Yacht Club Drive. This design work would consist
of utility potholing, surveying, obtaining title reports, and designing new sewer laterals for the two
dealerships and the new sewer main. The new sewer main to be installed in Yacht Club Drive will
be constructed in Phase 2 of this project, as part of a contract change order.

Schaaf & Wheeler’s original proposal did not include the construction related services, since the
parameters and scope of work for the construction of this project was unknown before performing
the preliminary design work. Schaaf & Wheeler’s construction support services will include
attending meetings and site visits, reviewing submittals, responding to the contractor’s questions,
and preparing record drawings.



ANALYSIS:

Schaaf & Wheeler has provided a cost estimate for both the additional design services and the
construction related services. Their cost estimate for the scope of work for additional design is
$72,771, and the estimate for construction support services is $62,610.

District staff has reviewed Schaaf & Wheeler’s additional scope of work and cost estimate and is
in agreement with it as presented.

FISCAL IMPACT:

These additional design and construction related services will be funded under the 80-Year Life
Cycle Sewer Replacement Program from the FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 Budget.

Existing Agreement and Proposed Additional Costs:

Original Schaaf & Wheeler Consultant Agreement Cost $ 303,000.00
Added Construction Management/Inspection for Phase 1 $ 39,000.00
Added Design Services for Phase 2 $ 72,771.00
Added Construction Support Services for Phase 2 $ 62.,610.00
Total $ 477,381.00
OPTIONS:

1) Staff recommends that the Board approve the increase in Schaaf & Wheeler’s budget to include
the additional design and construction related services from $342,000 to $477,381.00, for an
additional amount of $135,381.00.

2) The Board may reject approval of the budget increase. Staff does not recommend this option
since this will increase staff workload, which will impact other District projects.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the resolution authorizing the District Managet/District
Engineer to sign a Second Amendment to Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for design and
construction related services for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project from the
amount of $342,000.00 to the amount of $477,381.00, for an additional amount of $135,381.00.

Attachments:
1. Resolution
2. Second Amendment to Agreement



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 22-1250

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT MANAGER/DISTRICT ENGINEER
TO EXECUTE A SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT
WITH SCHAAF & WHEELER FOR DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION RELATED SERVICES FOR THE
2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT, PHASE 2
FOR AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $135,381.00

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT,
COUNTY OF MARIN, hereby resolves as follows:

The District Manager/District Engineer is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf
of the San Rafael Sanitation District, a second Amendment to Agreement with Schaaf &
Wheeler for design and construction related services for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair
and Replacement Project, Phase 2, a copy of which is hereby attached and by this
reference made a part hereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation
District Board of Directors held on the 8th day of August 2022 by the following vote, to
wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT/ABSTAIN:
SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

Kate Colin, Chair

ATTEST:

Maribeth Bushey, Secretary



SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
TO COVER ADDITIONAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION
RELATED SERVICES
BY SCHAAF & WHEELER FOR THE
2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT, PHASE 2

This second Amendment to the original Agreement is made and entered into
this 8t day of August 2022, by and between the SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
and SCHAAF & WHEELER.

This second Amendment covers increasing the original contract budget
amount of $303,000 for design related services and the first Amendment to the Agreement
for an additional amount of $39,000 for construction management/inspection services for
Phase 1 by approximately $135,381 to cover additional design and construction related
services for Phase 2 requested by District staff for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and
Replacement Project, Phase 2.

All of the additional work will be in accordance with the attached proposed

scope of services dated July 29, 2022, and attached herein as Exhibit "A".

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT CONTRACTOR
SCHAAF & WHEELER
Doris Toy
District Managet/District Engineer
By:
Title:
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Kerry Laiw Gerchow

Deputy County Counsel



EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES

This Scope of Work herein provides additional design services and construction support services for the
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project, Phase 2 (project) for the San Rafael Sanitary District.

1. ADDITIONAL DESIGN SERVICES
The following additional design services will be provided for the subject project.

A. Additional Utility Potholing
The original scope of services for the 2020 Sewer Repair Project included an assumed budget for
utility locating and potholing. This scope provides additional utility potholing as required for the
design of the project.

B. Surveying, Title Report, and Mapping of at the Infinity Dealership
Schaaf & Wheeler’s surveying subconsultant, Kier & Wright, will provide additional topographic
surveying, utility investigations, will obtain and review a preliminary title report for the
dealership property to accurately define the existing easements, and will provide basemapping
of the property along the sewer route.

C. Yacht Club Drive Utility Potholing and Design
Schaaf & Wheeler’s potholing subconsultant will provide utility potholing of up to 4 utilities in
Francisco Blvd to determine the feasibility of re-routing the sewer main that crosses the Infinity
Dealership property to Yacht Club Drive.
Schaaf & Wheeler will design the new sewer main within Yacht Club Drive and will design new
sewer laterals for the two dealership properties.
This scope does not include easement acquisition services. It is assumed that the District will
coordinate and obtain any necessary right of entry agreements with the dealership properties
prior to construction. This scope assumes that the Yacht Club Drive Sewer design will be
constructed with the Phase 2 project as part of a contract change order. This scope does not
include preparation of complete bid documents, bid phase services, or construction support
services for the project to be constructed as a separate project.

D. Additional Topographic Surveying, Du Bois Street
Schaaf & Wheeler’s surveying subconsultant, Kier & Wright, will provide additional topographic
surveying of the existing sewer manholes on Du Bois Street from Irwin Street to Anderson Drive.

E. Additional Pavement Repair Locations
Schaaf & Wheeler will determine the extents of pavement repairs for previously performed
sewer repairs. Schaaf & Wheeler will perform site visits to take field measurements and
document existing conditions and will prepare plans identifying the pavement rehabilitation
requirements.

F. Design of Additional Improvements
The original scope of services for the 2020 Sewer Repair Project assumed a total of 8,000 LF of
sewer replacement to be designed as part of the project. Based on the sewer assessment and
recommendations, the total length of sewer replacements designed as part of the project
included 12,684 LF for Phase 1 and Phase 2. This scope includes additional site visits, utility
investigations, project coordination, and design efforts.

Schaaf & Wheeler Page 1
July 29, 2022



2. CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES
Schaaf & Wheeler will provide construction support services for the Phase 2 project as listed
below:
A. Meetings & Project Coordination
1. Weekly
a)  Schaaf & Wheeler will prepare the agenda for the weekly progress meetings
and other construction meetings required during the project. It is assumed
that the weekly meetings will be virtual and that in-person attendance is
not necessary.
b)  Schaaf & Wheeler will facilitate and prepare the record of discussions for
the weekly progress and other construction meetings.
2. Miscellaneous
a) For any other meetings required during the progress of the work, Schaaf &
Wheeler will coordinate all parties, facilitate the meeting and provide
records of discussion for distribution.
b)  This scope of services includes up to 50 meetings (1 Preconstruction
Meeting, 43 Weekly Meetings, and 6 Misc. Meetings.
3. Project Coordination
a)  Schaaf & Wheeler will provide general project correspondence throughout
construction of the project.
b)  This scope includes a total of 43 hours of project coordination (43 week
construction contract duration @ 1 hour per week).
B. Submittals
1. Schaaf & Wheeler will review project submittals.
2. Schaaf & Wheeler will maintain a log and tracking system for submittals.
C. Clarification Processing
1. Schaaf & Wheeler will receive all Requests for Information (RFls) from the Contractor
and determine if the request is a valid RF; if not, Schaaf & Wheeler will return the RFI
to the Contractor with an appropriate response, if required.
2. Schaaf & Wheeler will provide a response to the Contractor for any administrative and
general RFls.
3. Schaaf & Wheeler will maintain a system for logging and tracking RFis.
Schaaf & Wheeler will prepare the Clarification Letter for transmittal to the Contractor.
D. Progress Payment
1. Itis assumed that the District will review, confirm quantities, and process the Contractor’s
progress payments throughout construction.
2. If requested by the District, Schaaf & Wheeler will provide review and recommendations
of progress payments. This scope includes up to 8 hours of assistance.
Schaaf & Wheeler Page 2

July 29, 2022



E. Site Visits
1. This scope of services includes attendance at up to 10 site visits throughout construction
to review existing conditions.

F. Final Punchlist

1. Schaaf & Wheeler will assist the District inspector to prepare the Final Punchlist with input
from the District.

2. Schaaf & Wheeler will confirm with the District inspector that the items identified in the
Final Punchlist are completed.

3. This scope of work includes up to two 4 hour site visits with District and City staff to review
field conditions. Note that this does not provide scope to review all project locations, it
is assumed that the District’s inspector will provide site visits, inspections and punchlist
items for all project locations.

G. Record Drawings
1. Schaaf & Wheeler will prepare project record drawings based on markups provided by the
District and the Contractor.

Assumptions:

1. Staffing and level of effort is based on an assumed number of hours. The scope included herein
will be performed upon request of the District on a time and materials basis. If the fee included
herein is exceeded additional budget will be necessary to complete additional work.

2. Material testing and compaction testing is not included within this scope of services.

3. Coordination of warranty work after the Contract Period is not included in this Scope of Services
or budget.

4. This scope does not include budget for observation, testing and handling of hazardous material.

5. Dispute resolution services using third parties or special processes (e.g. Mediation, Arbitration,
Mini-Trials, Dispute Consultants), or those requiring extraordinary efforts by Schaaf & Wheeler are
not included in this Scope of Work. If such non-routine dispute resolution services are required,
either an amendment or a separate task order will be executed.

Schaaf & Wheeler Page 3

July 29, 2022



FEES AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

The proposed fee estimate for the scope of services identified herein is provided below:

. 3 |
Schaaf & Wheeler e B0 L i g £ (8=
San Rafael Sanitation District el § 3 g R %
Additional Services for _E-' : ? = a2 £ : _E_
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and E"- ! g § 'E _.: 5 |
Replacement Project 5 5 = S = 2 |
Fee Proposal - July 29, 2022 3, i 3 i e 5
Hourly Rate } 5 5175 e < e | = 2
Task 1 |Addiional Design Services | so | a2 |mels 3sse0|s 14s517]s 18111 |5 3263|5 7277
A |addiional Ulility Potholing 4 $ 840 $ 611108 6| s 7562
B SUJ:v‘eying, Titte Repoﬁ. and Mapping of of the
Infinity Declership 4 $ 840 (% 9.500 $ 9501 $ 11.290
C Yacht Club Drive Utility Potholing and Design 8 32 | $§ 7280 $ 12,0000% 1.200] % 20.480
D Additional Topographic Surveying, Du Bois
Street 4 $ 840 | % 5017 $ 5021 % 6.359
E  |Addiional Pavement Repoir Localions 6 24 | $ 5460 $ $ 5460
F Design of Additional Improvements I3 24 32 | 60 |$ 21.620 $ §  21.620
Task2 |Construction Support Services | 227 |36 | e |5 s2810]s - |5 - |s - |s 62610
Al Pre-Qonstrucfion and Weekly Construciion
. Meetings [up to 54) 108 $ 22,680 $ $ 22,680
A2 |Miscellaneous Meetings (up to 6} 12 $ 2520 $ - $ 2,520
A3 |Projec! Coordinalion (43 weeks @ 1hr/week) 43 $ 9.030 $ - $ 9.030
B Submittals 4 16 24 | $  8.500 $ - $ 8.500
C Clarification Processing 8 12 |$ 3780 $ = $ 3,780
D Progress Payment 8 $ 1480 $ - $ 1,680
E Site Visits (up to 10} 30 $  6.300 $ - $ 6.300
F |Finai Punchlist 8 12 |$ 3780 $ - |$ 3780
G Record Drawings ] 4 | 20 1§ 4340 $ = $ 4340
[ToTAL 277 | 48 | 184 |5 99.4%0| 3 14517] 5 18111 S 3263 (5 135381
Schaaf & Wheeler Page 4

July 29, 2022



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 7.c.

DATE: August 8, 2022

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer 77(

SUBJECT: Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to Sign

an Amendment to Agreement with Nute Engineering for Construction
Related Services for Phase A of the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation
Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to sign an Amendment to
Agreement with Nute Engineering for construction related services for Phase A of the Bayside
Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project from the amount of $380,000 to the amount of $420,321.

BACKGROUND:

Within the Bayside Acres Beach neighborhood, there are approximately 20 homes located along
the beach with addresses on Beach Drive, Oak Drive, Marine Drive, and Point San Pedro Road
where the homes sit between the road and the beach, and the road is at a higher elevation. Their
laterals run down to the beach where the sewer main is located. The sewer was installed in 1972,
and at that time, the high tides and sea-level rise were not an issue. At present, our sewer
infrastructure is in the tidal zone; and the moderate to high tides cover the manholes, which have
lids that have corroded shut. Due to this situation, our staff is unable to access the sewer main to
perform maintenance.

Since the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project has many components, District staff and
Nute Engineering decided to break the project in several phases. The first phase (Phase A) consists
of installing approximately 1,800 feet of new 8-inch sewer main in Oak Drive, Marine Drive, and
Point San Pedro Road, where the future laterals will be connected. After the new sewer main is
installed, the next phase will be to install the new laterals for each of the 20 properties. Once they
have been connected, the District will decommission the existing sewer main in the beach.

On July 17, 2020, the District entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Nute
Engineering for only the design related services for the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation
Project. Now that the District has clear direction on this project and has awarded the Phase A
portion of the project to W. R. Forde Associates, Nute Engineering has been able to submit its
proposal for engineering services during the construction of Phase A.

Nute Engineering’s construction support services will include attending meetings and site visits,
reviewing submittals, responding to the contractor’s questions, and preparing record drawings.



ANALYSIS:
Nute Engineering has provided a cost estimate for engineering services during construction. Their

cost estimate for the proposed scope of work for this project is $40,321.

District staff has reviewed Nute Engineering’s additional scope of work and cost estimate and is
in agreement with it as presented.
FISCAL IMPACT:

These additional construction related services will be funded under the 80-Year Life Cycle Sewer
Replacement Program from the FY 2022-23 Budget.

Existing Agreement and Proposed Additional Costs:

Original Nute Engineering Agreement Cost $ 380,000.00
Added Construction Support Services for Phase A $ 40.321.00
Total $420,321.00
OPTIONS:

1) Staffrecommends that the Board approve the increase in Nute Engineering’s budget to include
the additional construction related services for Phase A from $380,000 to $420,321.00, for an
additional amount of $40,321.00.

2) The Board may reject approval of the budget increase. Staff does not recommend this option
since this will increase staff workload, which will impact other District projects.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the resolution authorizing the District Manager/District
Engineer to sign an Amendment to Agreement with Nute Engineering for construction related
services for Phase A of the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project from the amount of
$380,000.00 to the amount of $420,321.00, for an additional amount of $40,321.00.

Attachments:
1. Resolution
2. Amendment to Agreement



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 22-1251

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT MANAGER/DISTRICT ENGINEER
TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH
NUTE ENGINEERING FOR CONSTRUCTION RELATED SERVICES FOR
THE BAYSIDE ACRES BEACH SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT, PHASE A
FOR AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $40,321.00

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT,
COUNTY OF MARIN, hereby resolves as follows:

The District Manager/District Engineer is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf
of the San Rafael Sanitation District, an Amendment to Agreement with Nute
Engineering for construction related services for the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer
Relocation Project, Phase A, a copy of which is hereby attached and by this reference
made a part hereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation
District Board of Directors held on the 8th day of August 2022 by the following vote, to

wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:
SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Kate Colin, Chair

ATTEST:

Maribeth Bushey, Secretary



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
TO COVER ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION RELATED SERVICES
BY NUTE ENGINEERING FOR THE
BAYSIDE ACRES BEACH SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT, PHASE A

This Amendment to the original Agreement is made and entered into this
8™ day of August 2022, by and between the SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT and
NUTE ENGINEERING.

This Amendment covers increasing the original contract budget amount of
$380,000 for construction related services by approximately $40,321.00 to cover additional
construction related services requested by District staff for the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer

Relocation Project, Phase A.

All of the additional work will be in accordance with the attached proposed

scope of services dated July 1, 2022, and attached herein as Exhibit "A".

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT CONTRACTOR
NUTE ENGINEERING
Doris Toy
District Manager/District Engineer
By:
Title:
APPROVED AS TO FORM.:
Kerry Laiw Gerchow

Deputy County Counsel



NVI Kk B

Civil and Sanitary Consultants

July 1, 2022

Ms. Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer
San Rafael Sanitation District

111 Morphew Street

San Rafael, CA 94901

Re: Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project — Phase A
Proposal for Engineering Services During Construction

Dear Doris:

As you requested, we are pleased to submit this letter outlining the engineering services
proposed to be furnished by our firm for the engineering services during construction for the
Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project - Phase A.

BACKGROUND AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The sanitary sewers for the Bayside Acres Beach area were installed in the Beach around 1972.
There are 20 homes which are served by the two District sewer pipelines located on the beach
within the tidal zone. The District has found these two sewers on the beach to be very difficult to
maintain. Homes with addresses on Beach Drive, Oak Drive and on Pt. San Pedro Road are
served by these sewer pipelines in the beach. These District sewers drain into two District
operated lift stations that pump the sewage up the hill and into other District gravity sewers. On
May 20, 2022 the District Board directed District Staff to proceed with the design of private
residential pump systems to replace the gravity sewers in the beach and the District operated lift
stations.

The Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project — Phase A extends existing gravity sewers
on Pt. San Pedro Road, Main Drive and Oak Drive to serve the future private residential pump
systems. W.R. Forde Associates, of Richmond, CA. was awarded the construction contract with
the low bid of $1,244,155..

SRSD Phase A ESDC Proposal doc ]



BASIC SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY THE ENGINEER

The following is the scope of services we propose to provide on the above project.

Schedule A Services — Engineering Services During Construction

We will assist the District during construction by providing the following services on an as
needed basis:

1.

2.

7.

Attend preconstruction meeting

Provide one set offset stakes designating the alignment and depth of the new sewer and
prepare grade sheets

Review the contractor’s submittals and working drawings as necessary
Attendance at weekly construction meetings (assume eight (8) meetings)
Attend onsite field meetings if requested (assume three (3) meetings)

Evaluate proposals for modifications to the contract work and assist District in
preparing change orders to the contract for the District’s approval

Prepare a set of record drawings for the project

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL

It is understood that the following services are outside the scope of this proposal and will be
provided by others:

1.

Geotechnical engineering, soil compaction testing, and soil contamination investigation
services.

. Hazardous material investigations, assessment or removal

. Potholing of underground utilities

Payment of permit application fees
Legal services in connection with the project

On-site inspection services

SRSD Phase A ESDC Proposal.doc 2



ENGINEERING FEE

We propose to do all the work on a time and materials basis to be billed according to the
Schedule of Hourly Rates attached hereto as Attachment A. The estimated labor hours and
costs for the work by task and job classification are shown in Attachment B. We recommend
the following budget for this work.

Schedule A - Engineering Services During Construction $40,321

Very truly yours,

NUTE ENGINEERING

by: <7

rk T. Wilson, P.E.

Attachment A - Schedule of Hourly Rates
Attachment B - Project Estimating Sheet

SRSD Phase A ESDC Proposal.doc 3



907 Mission Avenue | San Rafael, CA 94901 | Phone: 415-453-4480 | Fax: 415-453-0343 | www.nute-engr.com

NVI =

Civil & Sanitary Consultants

ATTACHMENT A

2022 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE

OFFICE PERSONNEL HOURLY RATE
Principal Engineer $258.00
Senior Engineer 211.00
Engineer 111 199.00
Engineer 11 191.00
Engineer | 165.00
Field Representative™ 181.00
Assistant Engineer Il 129.00
Assistant Engineer [ 119.00
Senior Designer 188.00
CAD Drafter 11 158.00
CAD Drafter [ 138.00
Technical Administrative Support 118.00
Clerical 101.00

LITIGATION SERVICES
Court Appearance/Deposition 372.00

*Field Representative for construction is a Prevailing Wage category as required by the
California Department of Industrial Relations.

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Sub-consultants will be charged at 1.10 times cost. Charges for reproductions,
blueprinting, outside computer services, rental of special equipment, delivery,
express mail, insurance certificates (where client requires to be listed as an
additional insured) and meals and lodging will be charged at 1.10 times cost.
Mileage and technology charges are included in the hourly rates. Nute Engineering
reserves the right to adjust its hourly rate structure for all ongoing contracts.

EFFECTIVE DATE: January 1, 2022



¢ele/ilL XS1X'd Hy-00S3 vV sseyd asus

1Z€°0F$ 198§ 809°8$ 0ZLbS | ObIPS | T99°C1S 0€€9$  |s0D
U4 _ 0¢ | 3 0¢ SIMOH
o€ b j03[01d 91 10} SSUIMEBIP PI10OJaT JO 3as & dtedald /
01 ST 8 s1apio a3ueyd aredaid 07 1011ISI(T ISISSE ‘TORIIUOD O] SUOTIBIYIPOWI 10] S[esodold djen[eay ‘9
| 9 (SNSIA P31} € SUWINSSE) SJISIA POl 9NIS-UO IPIA0I °C
1 _ 01 (sSunosw g owINsse) SSUIT9W UOIJONIISUOD A[IaMm JB SJUBPUSNY  p
0€ 8z | 01 KTes$303U SB STUIMEBIP SUIIOM PUE S[ENIWIQNS S, JOJOBIIUOI MAIASY '€
198$ 809°8% b ] sy09ys ape1s axedaid pue Jomas mau jo yidop pue juswuSIe FueusIsop SINEIS 19SHO 195 SUO APIACL] T
| € | z Supieswr uononsuoda1d puany |
NOLLONWLSNOD ONINNA SHOIATHAS ONITHINIONE - V ATAAAHIS
doyrey 811§ 8¢1$ 161§ 112§ [n/$ vred
150D 150D 1oddng 1303503 e JoauiBug
STV.LOL 10211 P  |urwpy yoa, avo Jomuag

LH0J4T A0 TIAAT - SEIDIAYIS ONIIIANIONT NOISHAd
10616 VO ‘[dejey ueg 1VSOdOUd NOILDNULSNOD INIINA SADIAYAS ONRITANIONT LOATOUd NOILVDOTHI YIMAS HOVAT SHIOV HAISAVE

IAY UOISSIIAT LO6 IONILSIA NOILVLINVS THVAVI NVS
ONITHANIONH ALAN 4 INJWHIVLLY




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 7.d.

DATE: August 8, 2022

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer V)f

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to

Sign an Amendment to Agreement with Rauch Communication
Consultants, Inc., for Additional Public Relations Related Services for the
Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to sign an Amendment to
Agreement with Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc., for additional public relations related
services for the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project from the amount of $38,975 to the
amount of $81,664.

BACKGROUND:

Within the Bayside Acres Beach neighborhood, there are approximately 20 homes located along
the beach with addresses on Beach Drive, Oak Drive, Marine Drive, and Point San Pedro Road
where the homes sit between the road and the beach, and the road is at a higher elevation. Their
laterals run down to the beach where the sewer main is located. The sewer was installed in 1972,
and at that time, the high tides and sea-level rise were not an issue. At present, our sewer
infrastructure is in the tidal zone; and the moderate to high tides cover the manholes, which have
lids that have corroded shut. Due to this situation, our staff is unable access the sewer main to
perform maintenance.

Since the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project involves a tremendous amount of public
relations work and requires someone with public relations experience to work with the 20 affected
property owners, the District entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Rauch
Communication Consultants, Inc., on December 7, 2021.

Since Rauch Communication started the public relations services, Rauch has assisted District staff
with correspondence to the property owners in various formats, e.g., emails, newsletters, and phone
calls; presentations to the property owners and Board; and has attended staff meetings. Rauch has
now spent its budget of $38,975 assisting the District to reach its decision on project approach,
which is that each property owner will have their own private pump system.

District staff wishes Rauch Communication to continue its public relations services during the
design of each private pump system on the 20 impacted properties. The proposal includes updated
monthly newsletters, web updates, staff meetings, and other outreach support if needed.



ANALYSIS:
Rauch Communication has provided a cost estimate for additional public relations services. Their

cost estimate for the proposed scope of work for this project is $42,689.

District staff bas reviewed Rauch Communication’s additional scope of work and cost estimate
and is in agreement with it as presented.
FISCAL IMPACT:

These additional public relations services will be funded under the 80-Year Life Cycle Sewer
Replacement Program from the FY 2022-23 Budget.

Existing Agreement and Proposed Additional Costs:

Original Rauch Communication Agreement Cost $ 38,975.00
Added Public Relations Services $ 42.689.00
Total $ 81,664.00
OPTIONS:

1) Staff recommends that the Board approve the increase in Rauch Communication’s budget to
include additional public relation services from $38,975 to $81,664, for an additional amount
of $42,689.

2) The Board may reject approval of the budget increase. Staff does not recommend this option
since staff does not have this expertise; and this would increase staff workload, which would

impact other District projects.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the resolution authorizing the District Manager/District
Engineer to sign an Amendment to Agreement with Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc., for
public relations related services for the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project from the
amount of $38,975 to the amount of $81,664, for an additional amount of $42,689.00.

Attachments:
1. Resolution
2. Amendment to Agreement



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 22-1252

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT MANAGER/DISTRICT ENGINEER
TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH
RAUCH COMMUNICATION CONSULTANTS, INC., FOR
ADDITIONAL PUBLIC RELATIONS RELATED SERVICES FOR
THE BAYSIDE ACRES BEACH SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT
FOR AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $42,689.00

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT,
COUNTY OF MARIN, hereby resolves as follows:

The District Manager/District Engineer is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf
of the San Rafael Sanitation District, an Amendment to Agreement with Rauch
Communication Consultants, Inc., for additional public relations related services for the
Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project, a copy of which is hereby attached and
by this reference made a part hereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation
District Board of Directors held on the 8th day of August 2022 by the following vote, to
wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

Kate Colin, Chair

ATTEST:

Maribeth Bushey, Secretary



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
TO COVER ADDITIONAL PUBLIC RELATIONS RELATED SERVICES
BY RAUCH COMMUNICATION CONSULTANTS, INC., FOR THE
BAYSIDE ACRES BEACH SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT

This Amendment to the original Agreement is made and entered into this
8™ day of August 2022, by and between the SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT and
RAUCH COMMUNICATION CONSULTANTS, INC.

This Amendment covers increasing the original contract budget amount of
$38,975.00 for public relations related services by approximately $42,689.00 to cover
additional public relations related services requested by District staff for the Bayside Acres
Beach Sewer Relocation Project.

All of the additional work will be in accordance with the attached proposed

scope of services dated July 27, 2022, and attached herein as Exhibit "A".

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT CONTRACTOR

RAUCH COMMUNICATION
Doris Toy CONSULTANTS. INC.
District Manager/District Engineer

By:

Title:

APPROVED AS TO FORM.:

Kerry Laiw Gerchow
Deputy County Counsel



EXHIBIT "A"

Phone: 408-374-0977
Email: info@rauchcc.com

ra u c h Commlunlcat!on Web: www.rauchcc.com
= consultants inc. 936 Old Orchard Rd, Campbell, CA 95008

“*" Dynamic Public Outreach, Smart Strategic Planning

For lacal governments, special districts, and the engineering, environmental and law firms that supportthem.

DATE: July 27, 2022 NO OF PAGES: 3
TO: Doris Toy, District Manager
FROM: Martin Rauch RE: Public Relations Services for Bayside Acres Sewer Main Rehabilitation

This document is a proposal to provide public relations services for the design and construction phase of
the Bayside project.

The project and timing

Following selection by the Board of the private sewer lateral and residential pump systems, the District’s
consulting engineer is proceeding with the design of the systems. In the meantime, construction is set to
begin in mid-August of the main sewer pipelines in the street. Construction of the pump and sump units,
any electrical upgrades, and cleanup and return of landscaping to its original condition are expected to
last until summer 2023.

Scope of Work

The focus will be on proactively keeping the public informed as the project progresses, ensuring they
know where and how to communicate any questions or input they have in a timely way so the project
team can be responsive. Here are the key elements:

1. Prepare a monthly or as-needed update document emailed, mailer, or hand delivered to each
neighbor, local county supervisor (since they have been contacted about this project in the
past), the local HOA, and a few others. The document will inform people of recent progress,
announce upcoming actions, and provide contact information and other relevant information.
We propose that Barbara continue to distribute the document.

2. Monthly or as-needed web updates. This will provide similar information as the update mailer
and be available 24/7. The District will physically make the edits that we will propose in detail.

3. Prepare for and participate in weekly planning meetings to remain informed and be in a
position to be responsive and proactive, and work with the team to identify and resolve
potential issues before they become a problem.

4. Ongoing outreach support. A public outreach program must be responsive to the evolving
needs of the public it serves and changing circumstances as the project is implemented. We will
provide whatever type of outreach support is needed over time. This may include: press work,
social media engagement, responding to challenging issues, and more

AT

Martin Rauch, Senior Consultant

Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 1



Project Understanding and Key Issues

Our Understanding of The Community And Issues Facing The Ratepayers.
Below are key elements that we took into account while planning this proposal.

The key decisions have been made. Following an extensive public outreach and engagement process,
the District has selected a project approach and is moving forward. Construction of the main sewers is
about to begin.

A motivated engaged community that are directly impacted. Perhaps the most important issue with
this project is that it directly affects the involved people. We can expect a variety of strong opinions and
strong engagement by at least some of the participants. However, with the project defined and key
decisions made, the issues become more narrow and focused on individual owners.

Focus moves to customer service around the design and construction. The consultant believes that the
most important communication issues are moving from overall outreach to more of a customer service
approach around the design and construction. The owners are likely to have specific desigh or
construction concerns or complaints about issues like noise, dust, or damage. The focus of this falls more
on the engineering and construction teams rather than on outreach. Nonetheless, ongoing, general
outreach is needed to update people about progress, timing, and next steps, maintain a web presence,
support the design and construction engagement, etc.

The core impacts are on very few people. There is some likelihood that the interest, concern, and
impact of this project will be limited to the 20 directly impacted families. That is an easy scale to manage
in terms of communication. However, if the project were to become controversial, attention to it could
spread to the wider community so the project and the outreach program need to be prepared to deal
with that.

This could escalate. As mentioned above, sometimes a local issue escalates to an issue of broader
concerns. We have extensive experience working with controversial projects that are receiving a lot of
attention and heat.

This is a smart and beneficial project that will be supported by most people. Rehabilitating or replacing
an aging, corroded sewer pipe in the Bay decreases the chance of sewer spills and overflows in the Bay --
something virtually (or literally) everyone in a community would want. In addition, the District has been
very proactive and open in working with the community which would likely be viewed positively by a
majority of your constituency.

Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc.



COST PROPOSAL

Below is a not-to-exceed, time, and materials estimate of $42,689. It is important that a program of this
sort be flexible to respond to the needs of the community. Therefore, the deliverables, quantities, and
hours are estimates designed to give an initial scope of the effort. The specific deliverables may change
and the amount of time for each deliverable may also change depending on the evolving needs of the
District and the public it serves.

= eyerd Semior ~ Web  Graphic | Media/  Social Project Material

San Rafael Sanitation District Consultant master  Design Wiriting Media 'Manager Expenses Sublotal
$225 $M15 . $115 $75 $105 : $75

Heurs |85 0 13 0 0o | o n 8
1. Monthly (or so) update document) 5 hours per month for senior and 1 | [
hour for graphic design x 13 $14,625 I $0 $1,495 ' $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,120
Hours | 185 0 I 0 | o 0 195
Monthly or as-needed web updates.1.5 hours per month for seniorx 13 | $4,388 s | %0 | $0 .80 $0 $4,368
Haurs 1825 o | o | o o | o $0 16,25
Prepare for and participate in weekly planning meetings. 1.25 hours [ |
per month for senior x 13 | 93856 0 | s | %0 $0 $0 $0 $3,656
Hours | 78 0 e | 0 0 | 13 0 91
Ongoing outreach support. Press, social media, and other. 6 hours | |
per month for seniot. 1 hour per month for Praject Manager x 13 | #7550 | 0 0 g - $975 i $18,525
HOURS | 17875 0o | 1B | 0 0 1B )
TOTAL ESTIMATE $40219 | $0  $1495 | 80 $0 $975 $0 | $42,689

Current Rates. Outreach and public involvement programs rate for the senior consultant (Martin) is
$225 per hour. Webmaster (Mike and Jay) $115/hour. Graphic Design {Chris) $115/hour. Media
Consultant and Writing (Alex) $75. Social Media (Viveca) $105. Project Manager (Lynda) $75).

Travel and Expenses Additional. Material expenses, including, travel expenses (transportation and
lodging), printing, shipping, and sales tax are additional and passed on at cost. Car mileage is at the IRS
California rate at the time or actual rental car cost plus fuel. For meetings involving travel, the minimum
charge is four hours. S

Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 3



/e

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 7e.

DATE: August 8, 2022

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer

SUBJECT: Discussion on providing assistance to the District Manager/District Engineer
BACKGROUND:

Prior to 2005, both the City of San Rafael’s Public Works Director and Assistant Public Works
Director were part-time District Administrator (or District Manager/District Engineer, as it is
called now) and part-time Deputy District Administrator, respectively. When the Assistant
Public Works Director retired in 2005, the District rehired the retiree to continue his capacity as
the Deputy District Administrator on a part-time basis to assist the District Administrator to
continue managing some of the District’s new programs at that time. During that period, the
District was using City’s public works engineering staff for District capital improvement projects
and was starting to develop the 80-Year Lifecycle Replacement Program. Therefore, in 2007,
the District created a full-time Senior Civil Engineer to assist the District Administrator to
develop and administer both the engineering and administration of the 80-Year Lifecycle
Replacement Program. In order to fund the full-time Senior Civil Engineer, the part-time Deputy
District Administrator position was eliminated, and the District no longer paid for the 50% FTE
for a public works civil engineer and 15% FTE for a public works senior civil engineer.

Since 2007, the District has added the following positions to help implement the 80-Year
Program: a Construction Inspector in 2008; an Associate Civil Engineer (licensed) in 2013; and
a Junior Engineer in 2018. All these positions are City employees, just like all the other
employees dedicated to the District. Please note that although the District has an Associate
Engineer since 2013 and a Junior Engineer since 2018, there have been long periods of time that
these positions were vacant. It’s been difficult for the District to hire and retain experienced
engineers due to competitive compensations with other special districts and higher cost of living
in Marin.

Last year, the District asked Municipal Resource Group, LLC (MRG) to conduct a high-level
review and assessment of the District’s organizational structure, staffing levels, service delivery
methods, and staff compensation. At the September Board Meeting, MRG staff presented an
Organizational Review and Analysis report, which included a recommended work plan.


dorist
Text Box
 7e


ANALYSIS:

MRG’s recommended workplan is quite extensive and would require additional staff time to
implement all the tasks. Although the District just filled both the Construction Inspector and
Junior Engineer positions last month, the Senior Civil Engineer position remains vacant since
April 1, 2022, and the Associate Engineer has been with the District for less than a year. The
District Manager and with the assistance of the Operations and Maintenance Manager has been
managing various projects and training new staff. Therefore, the District Manager would require
additional assistance to work on MRG’s recommended workplan.

Last week, the Chair and District Manager discussed the idea of hiring a temporary executive
professional to assist the District Manager, such as a Deputy or an Assistant District Manager,
for two years. The Deputy Manager can manage the daily matters of the engineering division
and report to the District Manager; while the District Manager can focus on MRG’s
recommended workplan, other Board matters and planning for the District’s future.

The District Manager has requested MRG for a proposal to provide executive recruitment
services for the temporary Deputy/Assistant District Manager position. MRG’s tasks include
developing the job description, establishing the compensation, advertising, reviewing
applications, performing a preliminary interview with candidates, preparing the final candidates’
application package, and assisting the District’s interview process with the finalists.

At the next Board Meeting in September, staff will present a draft of the job announcement and
salary range for the Deputy/Assistant District Manager position for the Board’s review and

approval.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

MRG submitted the attached proposal to provide executive recruitment services for the
temporary Deputy/Assistant District Manager position at $225 per hour, not to exceed $28,250.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board approve the District hiring a temporary Deputy/Assistant
District Manager for a 2-year term and approve MRG’s proposal.

Attachment: MRG’s proposal, dated August 5, 2022



August 5, 2022

Doris Toy, District Manager
San Rafael Sanitation District
111 Morphew Street

San Rafael, California 94901

RE: Executive Recruitment - Deputy/Assistant General Manager
Dear Ms. Toy:

Thank you for engaging Municipal Resource Group (“MRG”) to provide executive recruitment
services for the position of an interim Deputy/Assistant General Manager. An outreach process
for the position is provided in this summary workplan to find the best candidate for this important
position at San Rafael Sanitation District (SRSD). MRG is fully aware that the position must be
filled with a candidate who possesses excellent leadership, management, oral/written
communication, and administrative skills. With this in mind, we have put together the workplan
for the recruitment with our proven methodology.

Included are the project steps, timeline, and costs. We anticipate the selection process will take
up to three months to bring in qualified candidates for interviews with SRSD. If there is any way
that we can reduce the length of time during the recruitment, we will certainly do so, but not to
the detriment of finding the best candidates for the positions. MRG Consultant Patty Francisco
with assistance from David Howard will provide the recruitment services for the Deputy/Assistant
General Manager position with the full support of the MRG Team. Please review the recruitment
plan and background information from MRG.

Respectfully submitted,
—
V"l\/'\_ﬁj\,'v:\\q L/\ (A S

J Q
Mary Egan
Managing Partner
MRG, LLC

916-261-7547
egan@solutions-mrg.com

Post Office Box 561 Wilton, California 95693 916-261-7547 www.Solutions-MRG.com



. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Municipal Resource Group, LLC is an experienced, full-service consulting firm dedicated to
assisting local government clients in attaining their strategic goals. MRG was founded in 2009 by
highly skilled and broadly experienced professionals. Our consultants have hundreds of years of
combined experience working to address local government challenges. MRG consultants are
independent contractors, most of whom have held executive and upper management positions
in public agencies.

II. EXPERIENCE

MRG is a great partnering resource for the San Rafael Sanitation District. MRG seeks to provide
its clients with professional transformational Human Resources services. Many of our public-
sector clients rely on us to review their historical processes and make practical recommendations
to streamline practices and enrich services. As you will hear from our client references, we
deliver modern, thoughtful, and strategic recommendations that reflect our clients’ values and
priorities.

MRG has over ten years’ experience providing recruiting and human resources services in
agencies and understands that each organization is unique. MRG strives to understand its clients’
expectations, organization, and practices.

In order to complete the project successfully, MRG expects that District staff will be required to
furnish all reasonable requests for information. To complete the scope of work, the District will,
within reason, make project stakeholders available for interviews and other necessary project
activities.

1l. FIRM BACKGROUND

MRG is a full-service consulting firm assisting public and private agencies. We have over 50
consultants engaged in technical, leadership and organizational support for public and private
agencies throughout California. Mary Egan is the Managing Partner in charge of this engagement.

Name of Organization: Municipal Resource Group, LLC (“MRG")
Managing Partner Mary Egan
Telephone Number: (916) 261-7547
E-Mail: egan@solutions-mrg.com
San Rafael Sanitation District Pagei

MRG Recruitment Proposal



mailto:egan@solutions-mrg.com

Mailing Address: PO Box 561, Wilton CA 95693

Website: www.Solutions-MRG.com
Year Established: 2009
Type of Organization: Limited Liability Company (Partnership)

The following is a partial list of MRG clients provided with similar services:
Oakland Housing Authority
California FFA Foundation
Cameron Park Community Services District
City of Elk Grove — specialized positions for the new Animal Shelter, plus Public
Works
City of Los Altos
City of Redwood City — several management-level positions
City of Vallejo
City of Yuba
Colusa Reclamation District
Community Resource Project
El Dorado LAFCO
Lincoln Avenue Water District
Putah Creek Council
San Ramon Fire Protection District
UC Davis Health System — over a dozen specialized positions
Yuba County Water District (Yuba Water Agency)
*MRG has also assisted many agencies in outreach services to support recruitment goals.

V. PROJECT STAFFING

MRG prides itself in providing consulting services based on our hands-on experience in managing
local, regional, and state governments as well as our experience in delivering products that meet
and exceed our clients’ expectations. A listing of our full services and our experienced
consultants can be found on our website.

Mary Egan is the partner overseeing this entire practice and provides high-level leadership over
every engagement including this matter for San Rafael Sanitation District.

e Mary Egan (Managing Partner) - Mary provides advice and coaching in the areas of human
resources and organizational effectiveness. Mary’s specialties include assisting leaders to
identify practical methods to address and remediate interpersonal and conduct-related
challenges impacting the organizational culture. She was a lead recruitment specialist for
ten years with Shannon and Associates Executive Search firm. Key clients include
international Fortune 500 firms, worldwide construction companies and major health

San Rafael Sanitation District Page 2
MRG Recruitment Workplan



http://www.solutions-mrg.com/

providers as well as elected officials and public agencies. As a certified professional
Executive Coach, Mary helps managers and executives maximize opportunities to
enhance their leadership. Her primary role in this project and similar completed projects
is client relationship and project finalization as the Partner in charge. She reviews final
project deliverables and provides oversight for the client engagement. Mary is readily
available to oversee the project team and meet project deadlines.

e Patty Francisco (Lead Consultant and Project Manager) - Patty has over 30 years of public
sector human resources experience and is primarily responsible for the consulting
practice in the Southern California region. She is a dynamic recruiter and her recent
experience at Metrolink equips her with the experience and the outreach opportunities
for locating the best candidates.

As an MRG consultant, Patty focuses on strategic human resources advice and counsel to
help organizations achieve successful results. She provides expert counsel and guidance
on various HR functions including organizational strategy and staffing design, employee
and labor relations and MOU administration, employee benefits, classification, and
compensation, organizational development, and employee engagement. Through
collaboration and partnership with clients, Patty works well in identifying issues and
offering meaningful recommendations to ensure sustainable outcomes. Based on the
foundation of developing strong relationships and reliance on expert knowledge, Patty
thrives in maintaining the balance in advocating for both employee and management to
ensure that the overall best interest of the organization serves as its cornerstone. Patty
received her bachelor’s degree in Public Administration from the University of Southern
California, and then went on to earn her Master’s degree in Human Resources Design
from Claremont Graduate University. Patty earned her Ph.D. in Organizational Leadership
from The Chicago School of Professional Psychology.

e David Howard (Consultant) — David is a retired senior executive from Los Angeles County.
He is a Civil Engineering management professional that brings a wealth of experience to
this technical recruitment. His outreach efforts will ensure the best candidates will be
considered. David’s expertise originated in Public Works working on a variety of projects
ranging from bike trials to water quality as well as construction. As his administrative role
increased, he managed grant programs and worked with the County Treasurer on bond
measures. As an Assistant Deputy Director of Public Works, he managed the delivery of
Capital Projects for numerous County Departments including the Hollywood Bowl
Amphitheater and MLK Jr, Medical Center Replacement Project. During his final years
with Los Angeles County led the Asset Management Branch of the Chief Executive Office
of 80 employees and focus the County’s resources on re-investing in the aging
infrastructure. During the first year of the COVID-19 pandemic, he was responsible for
many aspects of the disaster response.

San Rafael Sanitation District Page 3
MRG Recruitment Workplan



e The entire team of MRG affiliated consultants can be found at www.Solutions-MRG.com.
We have a wide range of professional subject matter experts in addition to Human
Resources.

V. RECRUITMENT PLAN

MRG is a professional, qualified fit for San Rafael Sanitation District. SRSD desires to be an
efficient and effective organization. The goal of the MRG recruiting process is to assist employers
achieve organizational success by hiring the right people. During our recruiting relationship we
will deliver our best advice and an expert point of view with both our clients and candidates. Our
recruitment strategy is based on integrity, respect, collaboration, commitment, and
communication.

» Integrity: We embrace and uphold the highest standards of personal and professional
ethics, honesty, and trust.

» Respect: We treat everyone with uncompromising respect, civility, and fairness.

» Collaboration: We work as a team with our clients and candidates to promote the
best outcome for all stakeholders.

» Commitment: We are committed to assisting our clients in identifying their
recruitment goals while providing a consistent methodology to obtain those goals.

» Communication: We believe that providing periodic updates to both client and
candidate during the recruitment process reduces the loss of qualified candidates and
allows for timely adjustments requested by the client.

Establishing the Deputy/Assistant General Manager Position
e Develop job description and establish the compensation

Review and develop job description for the Deputy/Assistant General Manager to delineate
specific duties and responsibilities during the interim period of two years. Survey similar
benchmark agencies to determine the appropriate salary range for the position.

Recruitment Steps
e Client Interview

One of the most important tasks in a successful recruitment is to interview the client to
determine the details of the hiring goal. During this process, we may facilitate the discussion of
more specific criteria for the position and ask how the candidate will fit into the organization. It

San Rafael Sanitation District Page 4
MRG Recruitment Workplan



http://www.solutions-mrg.com/

is important for the recruiter to be able to convey this information to the candidate honestly in
the preliminary interview.

e Advertisement/Tracking

The advertisement outreach is the first impression made upon the candidate pool and needs to
precisely articulate the goals/values of an organization and should portray a positive and
welcoming image. The fundamental purpose of an advertisement is to generate reader interest
and response. The core of a recruitment ad provides background information, specific job details,
and aspects of the organization that cause a potential candidate to want to know more.
Successful recruitment advertising includes concise and clear details of the vacancy and the
desired applicant profile along with information on how to easily apply. Collection of the
outreach details and responses provide necessary data to effectively manage all aspects of the
recruitment process and allows seamless communication with the client.

e Outreach

Often the difference between a satisfactory recruitment and an exceptional recruitment is the
level of outreach conducted. Making personal contact with candidates who may not be seeking
a position but excited once they hear about the opportunity is the “secret sauce” of a successful
recruitment.

MRG prides itself in engaging in extensive outreach efforts that attract and recruit diverse
candidates for all our executive recruitments. We are mindful, intentional and thoughtful in our
practice to ensure that we are meeting the needs of our clients while at the same time being
socially aware and continuously advocating for diversity, equity and inclusion in selecting
candidates.

We will work with leadership to identify their ideal candidate and industry professionals who
meet those criteria. We will contact those professionals and follow the chain to recommended
candidates.

e Resume Review and Ranking

As candidates resume packages are received, they are reviewed and ranked by the recruiter
according to preliminary qualifications to determine best matches. The candidate is notified that
their package has been received given information regarding “next steps” in the process.

Status is provided periodically to the client during the open advertisement and review period.
e Preliminary Interview with Candidates (Recruiter)

Based on the established criteria and organization goals the recruiter will conduct a preliminary
interview with the highest ranked candidates. Supplemental questions and/or writing exercises

San Rafael Sanitation District Page 5
MRG Recruitment Workplan



may be requested for candidates recommended for interviews. After the preliminary interviews
are completed, a summary is provided to the client along with a copy of the candidate resume
package. This information is delivered in a bookmarked easy to navigate PDF document. A
preliminary google search is completed for candidates recommended for panel interviews.

¢ Interview with Candidates/Ranking (Interview Panel)

Zoom interviews are scheduled with the top 5-10 recommended candidates dependent on the
Client’s preference. This panel interview is typically focused on determining a good “fit” as the
qualifications have been vetted in the preliminary interview with the recruiter. Consistent
guestions are developed and asked by the interview panel during each candidate interview with
facilitation by the recruiter. A simple ranking sheet is recommended which will illustrate any need
for a second interview for the top candidates.

e Second Interview (To Be Determined)

A second interview of the top candidates is sometimes preferred with a different interview panel
if the candidates have similar qualifications.

¢ Interview Panel Discussion-Selection

The recruiter will facilitate discussion regarding the qualification and organizational fit of the top
candidates with the interview panel based on the direction of the client.

e Candidate Background/Offer (Client or Recruiter)

Based on the Client’s desire, the recruiter may assist in the completion of the background check
and delivery of the job offer.

¢ Handoff to Organizational Human Resources

After the successful candidate is selected, the recruiter will provide the client with a complete
recruitment package for the recruited position:

= Advertisement

= Qutreach list

= Ranking of resumes

= Preliminary Interview Summary

= (Candidate Resumes

= |nterview Panel Ranking

=  Google Search Information on successful candidate

= Background check information (if provided by recruiter)
= Offer

San Rafael Sanitation District Page 6
MRG Recruitment Workplan



e Follow-up with Client/Candidate

The recruiter will follow up with both the successful candidate and the client within 30 to 60 days
after placement, and if appropriate, may check in again after a few months.

Proposed High Level Timeline and Status

08/15/2022 Clarify with District Manager desired candidate characteristics.
08/30/2022 Finalize announcement for position and outreach opportunities and begin
launch/post announcement
Outreach Ideas:
e Indeed
e NeoGov
e LinkedIn
e APWA--American Public Works Association
e ASCE—American Society of Civil Engineers
e CASA—California Association of Sanitation Agencies
09/30/2022 Close candidate submissions and begin resume and qualification review
10/03/2022 Provide a comprehensive list of candidates with preliminary rankings for
feedback
10/14/2022 Complete preliminary phone interviews with appropriate candidates
10/17/2022 Provide Candidate Package to interview Panel
10/24/2022 Begin Zoom candidate interviews with assigned panel
10/31/2022 Debrief and select best candidate or schedule second interview
11/04/2022 Complete preliminary background
11/14/2022 Start Date for Position
VI. FEES

The contract total for Deputy/Assistant General Manager executive position is estimated at
$28,250 which will be invoiced at $225 per hour for the scope of services outlined above plus up
to an estimated $3,000 in expenses. The breakdown of the hours is up to 90 hours for the
recruitment process including developing the job description and up to 20 hours to research and

San Rafael Sanitation District Page 7
MRG Recruitment Workplan




provide a compensation study. Expenses may include but are not limited to advertising (if not
paid for directly by SRSD) and miscellaneous costs. We anticipate conducting the recruitment
remotely and therefore do not anticipate travel expenses.

Additional work not contemplated in this proposal will be billed at $225 per hour and will begin
only after agreed upon between SRSD and MRG.

VIl.  REFERENCES

Here is the contact information for professional references:

Mr. Duane Hopkins

Chief Officer of Program and Finance Administration
Oakland Housing Authority

1619 Harrison Street

Oakland, CA 94612

dhopkins@Oakha.org

Dave Vaughn

City Manager, Yuba City
1201 Civic Center Boulevard,
Yuba City, CA 95993

(530) 822-4602

John Clairday, Board President
Lincoln Avenue Water Company
564 West Harriet Street
Altadena, CA 91001

(626) 798-9101

Curt Aikens, General Manager (retired)
Yuba County Water Agency

1220 F Street

Marysville, CA 95901

(530) 741-5000

Leah Lockhart, in her capacity as HR Manager in Redwood City
1017 Middlefield Road

Redwood City, CA 94063

Currently Human Resource Director, City of South San Francisco
(650) 877-8522

San Rafael Sanitation District Page 8
MRG Recruitment Workplan



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR AUDITING SERVICES
FOR THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

This Agreement is made and entered into this 25th day of July, 2022, by and between the
SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT (hereinafter "DISTRICT"), and MAZE & ASSOCIATES
(hereinafter “CONSULTANT”).

RECITALS
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has selected MAZE & ASSOCIATES, to perform the
required auditing services (hereinafter “PROJECT”) for the DISTRICT; and

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has offered to render certain specialized professional

services in connection with this PROJECT.

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows:
1. DEFINITIONS.

DISTRICT and CONSULTANT have outlined the scope of services to be provided, and related expenses
as described in Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated herein.

2. PROJECT COORDINATION

A. DISTRICT. The District Manager/District Engineer shall be the
representative of the DISTRICT for all purposes under this Agreement. The District Manager/District
Engineer is hereby designated as the PROJECT MANAGER for the DISTRICT, and said PROJECT
MANAGER shall supervise all aspects of the progress and execution of this Agreement.

B. CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT shall assign a single PROJECT
DIRECTOR to have overall responsibility for the progress and execution of this Agreement for
CONSULTANT. David Alvey, is hereby designated as the PROJECT DIRECTOR for CONSULTANT.
Should circumstances or conditions subsequent to the execution of this Agreement require a substitute
PROJECT DIRECTOR for any reason, the CONSULTANT shall notify the DISTRICT within ten (10)

business days of the substitution.



3. DUTIES OF CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT shall perform the duties and/or provide services as follows; the
CONSULTANT agrees to provide professional services as an Auditor Consultant to prepare work
outlined in the Proposal from CONSULTANT dated July 14, 2022, marked Exhibit "A", attached hereto,
and incorporated herein by this reference. The CONSULTANT agrees to be available and perform the
work specified in this agreement for the three fiscal years beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30,

2022, as shown in Exhibit "A".
4. DUTIES OF THE DISTRICT
DISTRICT shall perform the duties as described and incorporated herein.
5. COMPENSATION

For the full performance of the services described herein by CONSULTANT,
DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT on a monthly basis for services rendered in accordance with the fee

as described in Exhibit "A" attached and incorporated herein.

Payment will be made monthly upon receipt by PROJECT MANAGER of an
invoice submitted by CONSULTANT.

6. TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution until the Project

is complete.
7 TERMINATION

A. Discretionary. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause

upon thirty (30) days written notice mailed or personally delivered to the other party.

B. Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon ten
(10) days written notice mailed or personally delivered to the other party, and the notified party's failure
to cure or correct the cause of the termination notice, to the reasonable satisfaction of the party giving

such notice, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of said notice.

C. Effect of Termination. Upon receipt of notice of termination, neither
party shall incur additional obligations under any provision of this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the other. However, CONSULTANT’S duties and obligation in Sections 11 and 12 hereunder

shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

D. Return of Documents. Upon termination, any and all DISTRICT
documents or materials provided to CONSULTANT and any and all of CONSULTANT’s documents and
materials prepared for or relating to the performance of its duties under this Agreement, shall be delivered

to DISTRICT as soon as possible, but not later than thirty (30) days after termination.

Agreement * 2



8. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The written documents and materials prepared by the CONSULTANT in
connection with the performance of its duties under this Agreement shall be the sole property of
DISTRICT. DISTRICT may use said property for any purpose, including projects not contemplated by

the Agreement.
9. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

Upon reasonable notice, CONSULTANT shall make available to DISTRICT, or
its agent, for inspection and audit, all documents and materials except auditing work papers maintained by
CONSULTANT in connection with its performance of its duties under this Agreement. CONSULTANT
shall fully cooperate with DISTRICT or its agent in any such audit or inspection. All reports issued by
the consultant shall be the property of the District.

10. ASSIGNABILITY

The parties agree that they shall not assign or transfer any interest in this
Agreement nor the performance of any of their respective obligations hereunder, without the prior written
consent of the other party, and any attempt to so assign this Agreement or any rights, duties or obligations

arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect.
11. INSURANCE

A. During the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall maintain, at no
expense to DISTRICT, the following insurance policies:

1. A commercial general liability insurance policy in the minimum
amount of one million ($1,000,000) dollars per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate for death, bodily
injury, personal injury, or property damage;

2. An automobile liability (owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles)

insurance policy in the minimum amount of one million ($1,000,000) dollars per occurrence;

3. If any licensed professional performs any of the services required to
be performed under this Agreement, a professional liability insurance policy in the minimum amount of
one million ($1,000,000) dollars to cover any claims arising out of the CONSULTANT's performance of
services under this Agreement.

B. The insurance coverage required of the CONSULTANT by Section 11. A,,

shall also meet the following requirements:

Agreement « 3



1. The insurance shall be primary with respect to any insurance or
coverage maintained by DISTRICT and shall not call upon DISTRICT's insurance or coverage for any

contribution;

2. Except for professional liability insurance, the insurance policies shall

be endorsed for contractual liability and personal injury;

3. Except for professional liability insurance, the insurance policies shall
be specifically endorsed to include the DISTRICT, its officers, agents, and employees as additionally

named insureds under the policies;

4, CONSULTANT shall provide to PROJECT MANAGER, (a)
Certificates of Insurance evidencing the insurance coverage required herein, and (b) specific
endorsements naming DISTRICT, its officers, agents and employees, as additional insureds under the
policies;

5. The insurance policies shall provide that the insurance carrier shall
not cancel or terminate said insurance policies except upon thirty (30) days written notice to DISTRICT’s

PROJECT MANAGER;

6. If the insurance is written on a Claims Made Form, then, following
termination of this Agreement, said insurance coverage shall survive for a period of not less than five

years as long as the insurance is reasonably affordable and available;

7. The insurance policies shall provide for a retroactive date of placement

coinciding with the effective date of this Agreement;

8. The insurance shall be approved as to form and sufficiency by

PROJECT MANAGER and the County Counsel.
C. If it employs any person, CONSULTANT shall maintain Workers’

Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance, as required by the State Labor Code and other
applicable laws and regulations, and as necessary to protect both CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against
all liability for injuries to CONSULTANT’s officers and employees.

D. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions exceeding $20,000 in
CONSULTANT?s insurance policies must be declared to and approved by the PROJECT MANAGER
and the County Counsel. At District’s option, the deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to

DISTRICT shall be reduced or eliminated to DISTRICT's satisfaction, or CONSULTANT shall procure a

Agreement + 4



bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, attorney’s fees,

and defense expenses.
12. INDEMNIFICATION
CONSULTANT shall indemnify, release, and hold harmless DISTRICT, its

officers, and employees against any claim, demand, suit, judgment, loss, liability, or expense of any kind,
including attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting in any way from any acts or omissions, negligent or
otherwise, of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, agents, and employees in the performance

of their duties and obligations under this Agreement.
13. NONDISCRIMINATION

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the
basis of age, sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin or disability in connection with or related

to the performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement.
14. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS

CONSULTANT shall use due professional care to observe and comply with all
applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations in the performance of its
duties and obligations under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall perform all services under this

Agreement in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations.
15. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

DISTRICT and CONSULTANT do not intend, by any provision of this
Agreement, to create in any third party any benefit or right owed by one party, under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, to the other party.

16. NOTICES

All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given under
this Agreement, including any notice of change of address, shall be in writing and given by personal
delivery or deposited with the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed to the parties
intended to be notified. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of personal delivery or, if mailed,

upon the date of deposit with the United States Postal Service. Notice shall be given as follows:

TO DISTRICT: Ms. Doris Toy
San Rafael Sanitation District
111 Morphew Street
San Rafael, CA 94901

TO CONSULTANT:  Mr. David M. Alvey, CPA
Maze & Associates
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523

Agreement 5



17. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT
For the purposes and for the duration of this Agreement, CONSULTANT, its
officers, agents, and employees shall act in the capacity of an Independent Contractor, and not as
employees of the DISTRICT. CONSULTANT and DISTRICT expressly intend and agree that the status
of CONSULTANT, its officers, agents, and employees be that of an Independent Contractor and not that
of an employee of DISTRICT.

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT -- AMENDMENTS

A. The terms and conditions of this Agreement, all exhibits attached, and all
documents expressly incorporated by reference represent the entire Agreement of the parties with respect
to the subject matter of this Agreement.

B. This written Agreement shall supersede any and all prior agreements, oral or
written, regarding the subject matter between the CONSULTANT and the DISTRICT.

C. No other agreement, promise, or statement, written or oral, relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement shall be valid or binding except by way of a written amendment to this

Agreement.

D. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be altered or modified
except by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by the CONSULTANT and the DISTRICT.

E. If any conflicts arise between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
the terms and conditions of the attached exhibits or the documents expressly incorporated by reference,

the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall control.

19. SET-OFF AGAINST DEBTS
CONSULTANT agrees that DISTRICT may deduct from any payment due to
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any monies which CONSULTANT owes DISTRICT under any
ordinance, agreement, contract, or resolution for any unpaid taxes, fees, licenses, assessments, unpaid

checks, or other amounts.

20. WAIVERS

The waiver by either party of any breach or violation of any term, covenant, or
condition of this Agreement or of any ordinance, law, or regulation, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of
any other term, covenant, condition, ordinance, law, or regulation or of any subsequent breach or
violation of the same or other term, covenant, condition, ordinance, law or regulation. The subsequent
acceptance by either party of any fee, performance, or other consideration which may become due or
owing under this Agreement, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding breach or violation by
the other party of any term, condition, or covenant of this Agreement or any applicable law, ordinance, or

regulation.

Agreement » 6



21. CITY BUSINESS LICENSE/OTHER TAXES
CITY business license is not required under this Agreement. CONSULTANT
shall pay any and all State and Federal taxes and any other applicable taxes. CONSULTANT’s taxpayer
identification number is 94-2590179, and CONSULTANT certifies under penalty of perjury that said

taxpayer identification number is correct.

22. APPLICABLE LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day,

month and year first above written.

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT CONSULTANT

MAZE & ASSOCIATES

Doris Toy, P.E.
District Engineer/District Manager
APPROVED AS TO FORM: By:
David M. Alvey
Title:_Audit Partner
Kerry Laiw Gerchow
Deputy County Counsel

Agreement « 7



EXHIBIT "A"
M MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

July 14,2022

San Rafael Sanitation District
Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer

111 Morphew Street
San Rafael, CA 94901

Dear Ms. Toy

We are pleased to enclose one electronic copy of our Technical Proposal to provide Financial Auditing
Services for the San Rafael Sanitation District for the three fiscal years beginning with the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2022, with an option of extending for two additional one-year periods.

Yours very truly,

L v

David M. Alvey, CPA
Audit Partner/Shareholder

DMA:saa
Enclosures
T 925.930.0902
Accountancy Corporation F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 E Mmaze@mazeassociates.com

Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com



FINANCIAL
Pl AUDITING SERVICES

i PROPOSAL

San Rafael Sanitation District

Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer
111 Morphew Street

San Rafael, CA 94901

David M. Alvey, CPA
3478 Buskirk Ave, Ste 215 M A Z E
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 A

& ASSOCIATES

(925) 930-0902
davida@mazeassociates.com




This Page Left Intentionally Blank



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
FINANCIAL AUDITING SERVICES PROPOSAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TRANSMITTAL LETTER ...ttt et ne et st s sasn e sae e e sa s e s g s ae s s e s ne st st st et s s st s n e

LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN CALIFORNIA ........oooteirmicennenneres sttt s s smn s s msnss b s s i sasne s

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE
Firm Profile...
Reputation...
Capacity and Resources ............................................................................................................................
Experience... &
City and Town Cllents
Significant Special Dlstnct Audlt Engagements
Assistive Resources... - .
Client Training and Professmnal Development
PrOfESSIONAL ACTIVITIES . oviveviierese it st st ee e e se s sb s bbb s s s e b oo s s b s b s e b st st sp s gt b s b e
AT TrAININE et erveties et e s s s e b bR 08
Qualifications aNd COMINUILY .....ccveerreecrcrerieisesren s bs s bbb
External Quality Control ReVIEW/Peer REVIEW ....ccvwiiverierirerererimsssssssssssssis st sssssssasns
LItEZATION. c.ccvcserisicsere st bbbt bbb SRR SRR RS e
PEEr REVIEIW LBEEET i.uuvuiiiivissusaivmintsnassaninessossis sassansanse s snakys svassaas s isssss suses e e S Exesanssasansssassrsasessgesansensans

PROJECT TEAM
AUIE TEAM crovivirireveerirereerirste e tessssase s saese b b e b s se s b st rene st s bbb s e RS RS s b s e R b s R b e b e ba b e b e e e s e b s A n b r bt e b b nr s ebatss
Resumes of Staff Assigned t0 YOUr AUit.........cviiiiminnneis e
REFERENUCGES..........ooiieeeet et eeieeeerstessee s et s st st shessss s eae s s e s an e saa e s a e st s e R e e s s e e e s e b e e b e sae e s snasneenbesbe bartsnssusasensnns

SEGMENTED TIME AND FEE SCHEDULE .......cooiiiiitimrieeiet ittt ss e nn s a s

19
19

23

24



N MAZE

& ASSOCIATES
July 14,2022

San Rafael Sanitation District

Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer
111 Morphew Street

San Rafael, CA 94901

Dear Ms. Toy:

We appreciate this opportunity to submit our proposal to provide external audit services for the San
Rafael Sanitation District (District). We understand we will audit the District’s Basic Financial Statements
for the three fiscal years ending June 30, 2022 through June 30, 2024, with two optional one year
extensions. We will also perform additional procedures and complete the other assurance services as
specified in the District’s Request for Proposal, within the time periods established by the District.

We are quite certain we are the most qualified firm to be your independent accountants. As our founder,
Scott Maze, first coined over forty years ago, “We are in Business to Help Our Clients Succeed!” Since that
time, we have rigorously employed this philosophy along with our commitment to continual
improvement. Our clients know from experience we employ a variety of techniques, technologies and
strategies to maximize effective and efficient audits without shifting our work onto our client’s staff.
We’ve summarized these techniques, technologies and strategies below and explained them in more
depth in our proposal.

e We are the best-known regional municipal audit firm in Northern California. Our firm has
been in business over 40 years, and over that time, we have achieved national recognition with the
consistently high quality of our work and with our leadership on issues such as GASB Statements
34, 68 and 75, and internal control enhancement. We frequently speak at CSMFO and CSDA events
and webinars.

Municipal auditing is our main business. Our clients presently include a total of over one hundred
municipal entities, including many special districts the size of San Rafael Sanitation District.

e Our Partners are actively involved in planning, conducting and completing the audit in our
client’s offices, and our Partners are available when you need them. We resolve issues on the spot
while the auditis going on.

o When our partners communicate with Boards and Committees, their knowledge is based
on detailed specifics, not information which has been filtered through several layers of review.

e Wehave a long-term track record of client retention beyond our client’s original contract terms
because of the quality of our service.

e We are properly licensed to practice in California.

T 925.930.0902

Accountancy Corporation F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue. Suite 215 E Mazetmazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hiil, CA 94523 w mazeassoclates.com



e Ourfeeincludes one free day of live training. Starting in 2016, we implemented the annual Maze
Live training. This will provide you with knowledge of upcoming GASB pronouncements and
changesin the municipal field. Past classes included topics such as year two of GASB Statement 68,
GASB Update, Implementation of GASB Statements 74 and 75, Fraud Environment, Cybersecurity
and Single Audit under Uniform Guidance. Future classes will focus on similar topics as well as the
information to prepare for the implementation of GASB Statement 87.

e With our qualified information systems staff, we have developed and employ a number of
technologies to streamline our audit process, ensure open channels of communication and
data transfer while ensuring security and confidentiality of client data. These technologies
include paperless audit workpapers, and a major upgrade of our “electronic transfer of data”
technique eliminating manual financial statement inputs and maximizing easy to use financial
rollup reports.

e Our Closing Checklists help you prepare in advance for both our interim and year-end audits.
These Checklists do away with last-minute requests for schedules and analyses at year-end and
help identify potential problems early in the process. We will coordinate them with the work papers
you are already preparing, so you don’t have to prepare workpapers only for the auditors.

e We have one in Pleasant Hill, and employ approximately 60 people. This allows for smooth
communication, and reduces delays other firms experience when having to deal with multiple
offices for quality assurance and report generation and production.

e We do our best not to change staffing from year to year and from interim to final unless the
District requests a change.

e Our references - indeed, any of our clients, will confirm we are your best choice.

e We are a Small Business Enterprise (Certification ID 38671) as defined by the California
Department of General Services

As with all our audits, we are committed to providing timely, quality audit services to San Rafael
Sanitation District. We have no doubt that we are the firm best qualified to perform the services
described in the request for proposal. After you have analyzed our proposal and - most
important - talked with our references, we are quite confident you will agree.

David M. Alvey Vice President (davida@mazeassociates.com), and Vikki C. Rodriguez , Vice President
(vikr@mazeassociates.com), are authorized to represent, sign for and contractually obligate Maze &
Associates, a Professional Corporation, located at 3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215, Pleasant Hill, CA,
94523, (925) 930-0902. The proposalis a firm and irrevocable offer for 180 days.




We look forward to the opportunity to provide quality audit services for San Rafael Sanitation District!

Yours very truly,

L b

David M. Alvey, CPA
Audit Partner

DMA:saa



LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN CALIFORNIA

We are properly licensed California Certified Public Accountants. We are members of the Government
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) as
well as the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the California Society of Certified Public
Accountants.

All assigned key professional staff are properly licensed to practice in California. Those staff that are
certified public accountants have current California CPA licenses in the attest function, and have received
more than twice the required level of continuing education. Even though not required, all
non-certified audit staff receive the same level of training. We believe the level of training we provide is
unmatched by any other accounting firm. Our audit staff receives an average of 80 hours of
continuing education annually, including an average of over 48 hours of municipal audit and
accounting training. This is twice the amount required by professional standards.

Our program places heavy emphasis on governmental accounting and auditing classes conducted by
our own staff, supplemented by courses offered by the California Society of Certified Public
Accountants, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Government Finance Officers
Association and the California State Municipal Finance Officers Organization.

INDEPENDENCE

Independence

As independent auditors, our most valuable asset is our independence. Unlike many firms, we have
never allowed our independent audit function to be used to promote consulting or other work. In fact,
consulting and related work have never amounted to more than a few percent of our total revenues,
while our independent audit work has amounted to over eighty percent of our revenues.

our firm and all our partners and employees are independent of the San Rafael Sanitation District as
that term is defined by the General Accountability Office’s Government Auditing Standards, the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the California Society of Certified Public Accountants and the
California State Board of Accountancy. We have no present or past professional relationships with the
District or any of its Board members or employees that would compromise our independence.

We will discuss in advance with the District any professional relationships being contemplated during
the period of engagement that may present a potential conflict of interest. Ifthe District and we believe
any such relationship presents a conflict of interest, we will not enter into it.



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Firm Profile

We are a professional services corporation located in Pleasant Hill, California. We presently have a total
of approximately 60 employees, including seven shareholders, three Directors, three Managers, eleven
Supervisors and many more Audit Associates and Tax/Office Staff. Fifteen (15) of our professional staff
are California Certified Public Accountants and two additional staff are in the process of completing
their applications for licensure. Forty-two (42) of our professional staff comprise our governmental
audit staff, as our firm's emphasis is on governmental auditing and accounting. Several of our
professional staff have national accounting firm experience, which we have blended with the more
personal approach of a smaller firm.

The majority of our clients are cities, special districts, or other municipal entities and we do this work
twelve months of the year. We limit our practice in other areas and focus on being the best municipal
audit firm in Northern California. Our clients include several special districts similar to the District in
size. Our audit strategy is tailored to municipalities and is quite different from the traditional approach
adapted from commercial clients by general practice accounting firms.

We have focused on municipalities since our inception in 1986. We are active in GFOA, CSMFO, CSDA,
CalCPA and CMTA, and our Partners have been speakers at many GFOA, CSMFO, CSDA and CMTA
functions.

We are in business to help our clients succeed. We help you use the ever-growing tangle of accounting
rules properly, but to your best advantage, by helping you keep out of trouble and helping you do the
right thing. We stay in touch throughout the year to keep you abreast of municipal accounting
developments and to help you avoid problems, instead of coming in afterwards to assess the damage.
We rotate our audit emphasis based on our planning meetings with you as well as our fraud and audit
planning discussions with Board members, so areas that concern you can be addressed as a normal
part of the audit at no extra cost.

Reputation

We believe quality and an emphasis on doing our job right is far more important than being cheaper
than our competitors. Despite the economic pressures faced by municipalities and the need to save
money, there are other, more serious concerns to be weighed. For instance, the perceived or actual
audit failures in the municipal audit sector. The City of Bell news, especially the State Controller’s Office
Report on that City’s audit firm, raised serious questions about municipal audit quality. Whether this is
justified or not isn’t really the issue. What is at issue is the perception of poor quality in municipal
audits. We received a number of inquiries and requests for proposal from that firm’s clients who desired
a change in auditors. A former client of ours, which rotated to them several years ago, called us and
asked if we would propose on the City’s work. They said that the council simply did not want to expend
the energy to defend whether that firm was providing quality work.



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

These trends indicate that it would be unwise to reduce audit effort for any municipal audit. Our
commitment to quality and preserving our firm’s reputation remains our top priority and serves our
clients best.

Capacity and Resources

We have consistently demonstrated the ability of our capacity and resources to meet the demands of
our clients. We have never missed a reporting deadline for any of our clients.

Over the years we have made substantial additional investments in our people and our systems.
We have continued our policy of at least doubling the required amount of Continuing Education we
provide our people. We routinely provide an average of one hundred hours of Continuing Education
each year—the State requirement is forty hours. We routinely ensure that at least eighty of those hours
are specific to municipal audit and accounting—the State and government auditing standard
requirements are twenty-four hours.

We have more than doubled the number of people on our staff over the past ten years, and most of
these new people are professional audit staff members. More people and more continuity combine to
mean that our people capacity and resources have more than doubled.

Hand-in-hand with our continuing investment in our people has been our increased investment in
systems and hardware support. Eight years ago, our systems work was handled by an outside
consultant. Today, we have a full-time staff of three people who maintain our state-of-the-art
systems capabilities and provide increasing levels of such service to our clients. Every person on
our staffis now armed with a late model PC that communicates with all our other PCs, printers, servers,
etc., via our own wireless network establish in each client’s office at the start of each audit. Most of our
work-papers are now prepared on these PCs as we continue to move toward paperless audit and
paperless files.

We have moved most of our clients from a manual input of their general ledger data to a fully
mechanized computer dump of that data direct to our Excel-based financial statement formats. At
the same time, we have added significant numbers of internal data controls to financial statement
formats. This strategy has virtually eliminated input errors, increased efficiency, and allowed our
clients to spend less time reviewing and approving the financial statements. Not only does our new
direct dump produce fund-basis financial statements, it produces the Entity-wide financial statements.
And these improvements have been made without a hiccup - we consistently deliver final draft
financial statements and reports to our clients the last day of our fieldwork in our client’s offices.

We are not relying on the capabilities or resources of any other firms in our proposal.



__FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

Experience

Our practice includes over fifty city, town or county clients and more than fifty special districts,
including over forty city and special district ACFR award winners—more award winners than any
other Northern California accounting firm or international firm branch office. Included in those
totals are six award-winning Special District ACFRs. Eighty percent of our practice is municipal auditing,
accounting and consulting, continuing throughout the entire year. Our growth can be seen in the graph
below, which shows the growth in the number of our total municipal entity clients in blue, City audit
clients in green and ACFR award winners in red.

180
170 1
160 -
150 -
140 -
130 -
120 -
110 A
100 -
90
80
70
60
50
40 -
30

i — r— ¥ —n &7 et |
‘ﬂr || ll || II || II ||
‘I |

20
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

10

Every one of the above ACFRs won awards from GFOA and/or CSMFO.

As you can see from the client list in the Firm Qualifications and Experience - City, Town, and County
Clients Section below we have a winning combination that has resulted in strong client loyalty and
retention. Several clients who left have returned after seeing the difference between our firm and our
competitors. Others have remained our clients after completing a full-blown proposal process, most
recently Cities of Belmont, Hayward, Milpitas, Moraga, Oakley, Pittsburg, Santa Clara, South San Francisco
and Sutter Creek.



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued) o]

City and Town Clients

The table below summarizes our most recent experience with audits of cities, towns and counties. We are
responsible for all phases of the work on these clients. All of this work represents recurring annual
audit and related work; all this work and that presented in the table was completed on or before the
deadline from the first year listed for each client. Please also see the References Section for names
and current phone numbers for contacts on work quality and performance.

CITY AND TOWN EXPERIENCE

Annual
Comprehensive

Client Start Financial Report
Client Name Scope of Work Date Submission GFOA Award Single Audit

Population > 100,000

Audits of City financial statements,
Successor Agency, Healthcare N N v
fEonce i District, Financing Authority, Single ROLIEIRESSIENE Yes Yes Yes
Audit
Audit of City financial statements,
Succassor Agency, Single Audit, v v v
Daly City Transportation Develapment Act 1992 - Present Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Transportation Measure, JPAz
audits
Audit of City financial statements,
Successor Agency, Single Audit, v v v
Hayward Transportation Development Act 2011 - Present
i : Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Transportation Measure,
Einancing Corparation Audit
Audit of City financial statements,
ingle Audit, v N
Santa Clara StincestanAgencySingleAusl 2012 - Present \/
Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Sillcon Valley Power Audit
Population < 100,000
Audit of City financial statements,
rAgency, Single Audit, v NS v
Alameda Sycesssargency, Sing H 2018 - Present
Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Transportation Measures
Audit of Basic Financial Statements, v
Atherton . A 2009 - Present - .
Single Audit Yes
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Belmont Successor Agencay, Single Audit, 1998 - Present
Yes Yes Yes
Transportation Measure
v v
Belvedere Audit of Ciy financial statements 2018 - Present Ly
Yes Yes
Audit of City financial statements, w v 7
Benicia Single Audit, Transportation 2011 - Present
A Yes Yes Yes
Development Act Audit
Audit of City financial statements,
Successor Agancy, Single Audit, v v v
Brent: d 2007 - Present
rentwoo Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit
it of City fi i t:
Brisbane Audit of City financial statements, 2011 - Present 2 " .
Successor Agency
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Burlingame Single Audit, Transportation 2016 - Present
. Yes Yes Yes
Dovelopment Act Audit,
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Davi 2015 - Present
e Single Audit Yes Yes Yes
dit of Cityfi i tat t: N v v
Elk Grove Au |tvo ity |n'am:|al statements 20171 preiams
and Single Audit Yes Yes Yes
Fairfax Audit of Basic Financial Statements 2009 - Present = . o
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Half Moon Bay Single Audit, Transportation 2014 - Present Yes Yes .
Development Act Audit




_FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

City, Town and County Clients (Continued)

Annual
Comprehensive

Client Start Financial Report

Client Name Scope of Work Date Submission GFOA Award Single Audit
Audit of City fi ial stat nts, N
Lathrop . [} lt.y inancial statements 2011 - 2020 v v
Single Audit Yes Yes Yes
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Los Altos Single Audit, Transportation 2014 - Present
Yes Yes Yes
Measure
Audit of City financial statements
d North C ty Lib Authority,
Los Altos Hills a.n ° .oun v L rarv. uthority 2016 - Present v v v
Single Audit, Transportation Yes Yes Yes
Development Audit
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Manteca Successor Agency, Single Audit, 1986 - Present Yes Yes Yes
Financing Authority Audit
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Martinez Single Audit, Transportation 2001 - Present
. Yes Yes Yes
Development Act Audit
Audit of City financial statements,
S A , Single Audit,
Milpitas uccessor gency ingle Audi 1995 - present v N v
Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Financing Corporation Audit
Audit of City financial statements,
Si Audit, v
Moraga SuccessorA.gency, ingle Audit, 5012 - Present v v
Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit
Audits of City Basic Financial
Mill valley Statements and Sewerage Agency of 2020 - Present of * *
Southern Marin
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Morgan Hill Single Audit, Transportation 2015 - Present
. Yes Yes Yes
Development Act Audit
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Oakl 2000 - Pre t
akley Successor Agency, Single Audit sen Yes Yes Yes
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Orinda Single Audit, Transportation 2015 - Present
) Yes Yes Yes
Development Act Audit
Audit of City financial statements,
Single Audit, rtati v N N
Pacifica e Transpo. aton 2015 - Present
Development Act Audit, Yes Yes Yes
Transportation Measure
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Pleasanton Single Audit, Transportation 2016 - 2020
R Yes Yes Yes
Development Act Audit
Audit of City financial statements,
Suce Al , Single Audit, v v v
Pittsburg ceessor 5‘5"“ s 2011 - Present
Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Retirement Plan Audit
Audi ic Fi ial Stat t
Portola Valley udit of Basic Fl'nanua atements 2005 - Present . N .
and Transportation Measure
Audit of City financial statements,
Successor Agency, Single Audit, ¥ v v
Redwood City Transportation Development Act 2019 - Present
) ) . Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Audit of Port of Redwood City,
Audits of Joint Power Authorities




City, Town and County Clients (Continued)

Client Start

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

Annual
Comprehensive
Financial Report

Client Name Scope of Work Date Submission GFOA Award Single Audit
Audit of City financial statements, % v v
San Bruno Single Audit, Transportation 2016 - Present
. Yes Yes Yes
Development Act Audit
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
San Carlos Successor Agency, Single Audit, 2016 - Present Yes Yes Yes
e
Transportation Development Act
Audit of City financial statements,
Succes Agency, Single Audit, v v
San Leandro . ,ge = : 2011 - Present N
Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Transportation Measures
Audit of City financial statements,
Su A , Single Audit, v
San Pablo ceessor gencv . ! 1995 - Present i N
Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit
Audit of City fi ial stat t
San Rafael udit of City |nancn.a sta em.en s, 2007 - Present v v v
Successor Agency, Single Audit Yes Yes Yes
Audit of City financial statements,
(3 A , Single Audit, v
South San Francisco uccessor gencv il 2004 - Present N .
Transportation Development Act Yes Yes Yes
Audit, Transportation Measure
Audit of Basic Financial Statements, N
Sutter Creek . : 2015 - Present 2 ‘
Single Audit Yes
Audit of City financial statements, v v v
Tracy e e 2015 - 2020
Successor Agency, Single Audit Yes Yes Yes
Audit of Basic Financial Statements,
Successor Agency, Single Audit,
Transportation Development Act N
Turlock 2013 - Present " -4
roc Audit, Financing Authority Audit, Yes
Abandoned Vehicle Abatement
Program
Audit of City financial statements,
) Successor Agency, Single Audit, v N v
Visal 2015 - 2020
. Transit Fund Audit, Transportation Yes Yes Yes
Measure
Audit of the City fi ial N v
Watsonville . N I_tv |nanCI.a 2017 - Present N
statements, Single Audit Yes Yes Yes

10



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

Significant Special District Audit Engagements

The chart below shows our most recent experience with District and Authority audits. We are or were
responsible for all phases of work for these entities.

1st Compliance Single Audit/
Special Districts and Authority Clients Year | Requirements | Special Report
FINANCING
Association of Bay Area Governments FAN 1997 X
City of Rancho Cordova Financing Authority 2009 X
Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority 1992 X
Governments of Livermore Financing Authority 1991 X
Hayward Public Financing Authority 1996 X
Manteca Financing Authority 1991 X
Milpitas Public Financing Authority 1995 X
Palo Alto Public Financing Corporation 1998 X
Richmond Joint Powers Financing Authority 2005 X
HOUSING
Napa Valley Housing Authority 2000 X X
Napa Housing Authority 2000 X X
Richmond Housing Authority 2005 X X
Suisun Housing Authority 2007 X X
lVallejo Housing Authority 2004 X X
PUBLIC SAFETY
Belmont Fire Protection District 1998 X
East Contra Costa Fire Protection District 2011 |
Menlo Park Fire Protection District 2009 X
Net Six Joint Powers Authority (Dispatch services) 1998 X
Novato Fire Protection District 2013
Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District 2009 X
Ross Valley Fire Department 2013
Ross Valley Paramedic Authority 1991 X
San Mateo Pre-Hospital Emergency Svcs. Providers Group 2000 X X
San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District 2000 X X
South County Fire Authority 1998 X X
South San Mateo Police Joint Powers Authority 2000 X
Twin Cities Police Authority 1991 X
RECREATION AND OTHER
Association of Bay Area Governments 1997 X X
Contra Costa Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008
East Bay Regional Park District 1987 X X
Livermore Area Recreation and Park District 1989 X X
Manteca Recreational Facilities Authority 1986 X
Marin-Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District 2013
Silicon Valley Animal Control Authority 2001
West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management Authority 2019 [
RISK MANAGEMENT
Association of California Water Agencies JPIA 2009
Association of Bay Area Governments PLAN 1997
Association of Bay Area Governments SHARP 1997
California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority 1993
Redwood Empire Municipal Insurance Fund 2013
Small Cities Organized Risk Effort 2009

11



Significant Special District Audit Engagements (Continued)

TRANSPORTATION
Alameda Contra Costa County Transit Authority 2010 X X
Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority 2010 X X
City/County Association of Governments 2005 X X
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 2003 X X
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 2012 X X
Livermore/Amador Valley Transportation Authority 1994 X X
Measure ) Traffic Congestion Relief Agency (TRAFFIX) 2012
Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board 2010 X X
Peninsula Traffic Congestion Relief Alliance 2001 X X
Ralston/Holly /Harbor Grade Separation Projects 1998 X X
San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency Transit Auth. 1997 X X
San Mateo County Transit District 2010 X X
San Mateo County Transportation Authority 2010 X
Solano Transportation Authority 2004 X X
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (SMART) 2017 X X
West Contra Costa Transportation Authority Commission 1995 X
utiLny

Alameda Municipal Power 1990 X
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 2005
Bethel Island Municipal Improvement District 2007
Calaveras County Water District 2004 X
California Association of Sanitation Agencies (Non-profit) 2005
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 2013
Coastside County Water District 1993 X X
Contra Costa Water District 2002 X
Contra Costa Solid Waste Authority 1993 X X
Diablo Water District 2014
Dublin San Ramon Services District 1999 X X
DSRSD/EBMUD Recycled Water Authority 2005
East Bay Dischargers Authority 2015
East Bay Municipal Utility District 2005 X X
East Palo Alto Sanitary District 2013 X
El Dorado Irrigation District 2007 X X
Fairfield Suisun Sewer District 2000
Freeport Regional Water Authority 2005
Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency 1987 X
Mid-Peninsula Water District 2006
Novato Sanitary District 2013 X
Palo Alto Regional Water Quality Control Plant 1998 X X
Placer County Water Authority 2005 X
Sacramento Suburban Water District 2020
Santa Clara Valley Water District 2004
Sausalito-Marin City Sanitary District 2011
Siticon Valley Power 2012
Skyline County Water District 1992
Solano Irrigation District 2006
South Bay System Authority 1998 X
South Bay Transfer Station Authority 1997 X
South San Joaquin irrigation District 2004
South Placer Wastewater Authority 2001 X
Stanislaus Waste-to-Energy 2005
Stinson Beach County Water District 2011 X
Tri-Valley Wastewater Authority 1990
Union Sanitary District 2000
Upper Mokelumne River Watershed Authority 2005
Vallejo Sanitation and Flood Control District 2016
West Valley Sanitation District 2004

2010 X X

Zone 7 Water Agency

12




FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

As you can see from the client lists above, we have a winning combination that has resulted in strong
client loyalty and retention. Several clients who left have returned after seeing the difference
between our firm and our competitors, most recently Dublin-San Ramon Services District, Livermore-
Amador Valley Water Management Authority, Contra Costa Water District, and Benicia. Others have gone
through a full proposal process and retained us.

Assistive Resources

Our client support is unmatched by any other firm. As a San Francisco Bay Area municipal audit niche firm
with five audit partners, we are positioned perfectly to provide staff and Board with a wide variety of
resources. Support ranges from turnkey financial statement drafts with linked footnotes and direct
download-based financial statements to professional continuing education sessions. We are active in
professional organizations affecting local government and have a strong presence in neighboring local
governments which keeps our knowledge current that we readily share with our clients. And we do not
charge extra for the five-minute phone calls throughout the year.

Client Training and Professional Development

We can provide you with varying levels of training and professional development resources. We provide
our semi-annual continuing education to our staff and have on occasion opened it up to our clients who
wish to keep their licensees current. Our audit fee includes providing training and assistance with the
implementation of applicable new GASB statements, at no additional charge. Depending upon the
complexity of the GASB Statement requiring implementation, the assistance could take the form of free
access to web-based training, one-on-one or group training, suggested footnote disclosure templates
and/or Excel spreadsheet templates.

We have also developed and conducted training specifically for our clients. Training can be general theory
in nature, semi-customized or fully customized training that fits your operations. Theory intensity can be
at the beginning, intermediate and advanced levels. On occasion, we have provided our clients with
shorter presentations of new pronouncements and other requirements. At the City of Richmond, for
example, we developed and taught monthly training sessions on virtually every major finance area to its
staff over a twelve-month period. Much of their staff had assumed new functions in the aftermath of
serious staffing cuts several years ago and their Finance Director was seeking an economical method of
enhancing their knowledge base and skill sets. At the Cities of Richmond, Livermore, El Cerrito and
Belmont we provided grants management training to several departments as a means of solving
coordination weaknesses.

In 2016, we launched Maze Live - this is a full day of training which is free to our clients and qualifies
for continuing education credit. Past classes included topics such as year two of GASB 68, GASB update,
Implementation of GASB Statements 74 and 75, Fraud Environment, Cybersecurity and Single Audit under
Uniform Guidance. Future classes will focus on similar topics.

13



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE {Continued)

Professional Activities

We are active members of the Government Finance Officers Association and the California Society of
Municipal Finance Officers as well as the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
California Society of Certified Public Accountants. We are also a member of the Association of California
Water Agencies (ACWA). We are frequent speakers at various organizations.

We attend CSMFO Northern California chapter meetings on a regular basis, and we have served as
speakers on various occasions. We also attend the CSMFO Annual Conference, at which our Partners
and IT Director have been speakers. We have also attended the League of California Cities’ annual
Financial Management Seminars.

Amy Meyer, Partner, and Katherine Yuen, Partner, serve on the Governmental Accounting and Auditing
Committee of the California Society of CPAs. David Alvey, Partner, serves on the Accounting Procedures
and Assurance Services Committee of CalCPA and the Professional Standards Committee of CSMFO.
Amy Meyer and David Alvey are ACFR reviewers for the ACFR Award Program of the Government Finance
Officers Association.

Staff Training

We believe the level of training we provide is unmatched by any other accounting firm. Our audit staff
receives an average of 80 hours of continuing education annually, including an average of over 48
hours of municipal audit and accounting training. These are twice the amount required by
professional standards.

Our program places heavy emphasis on governmental accounting and auditing classes conducted by
our own staff, supplemented by courses offered by the California Society of Certified Public
Accountants, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Government Finance Officers
Association, the California State Municipal Finance Officers Organization and the Association of
California Water Agencies.

We accomplish this task by reserving two weeks each year solely for staff training. Our trainingis
very specific and very participatory; lectures are almost non-existent as people are involved in a
continual give-and-take format designed to educate while it helps us improve our services. We deal
with specific clients and situations, we solve problems and do case studies, and we train people for real-
life situations through role-play exercises. Everyone is equal in these exercises and everyone
contributes their own experience in the field and the ideas they have formulated from that experience.
Suggestions coming out of staff training sessions are the source of most of the service
improvements and refinements we make each year.

14



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

A listing of our continuing education courses provided to all our staff, both certified and non-certified,

over the past three years is as follows:

Area/Course

Spring
40 Hrs.,

2018
Summer
40 Hrs.

Spring
40 Hrs.

2019
Summer
40 Hrs.

Spring
40 Hrs.

2020
Summer
40 Hrs.

Auditing and Accounting Management

Municipal Audit - Practice Analysis and Review

Managing Municipal Audits - Audit Supervisors

[21]
m

Control Testing

B|B|B

B|B|(B

Quality Control

B|B|B|B

B|B|B|B

GAAP Updates

Cash, Debt, and Capital Asset Auditing Updates

GASB/FASB Update

BB

B|B

GASB 74/75

B(B|B

B|B|B

GASB 68

Journal Entry Testing

B|B|B|B|B

BiB|B|B|B

Compliance Audits

Transportation Audits - TDA, STIP and Measures A, B, C

RDA Compliance/Successor Agency Audit

Single Audit Compliance

BB

E|B

Auditing Standards

Audit Standards Update

New SASs, Risk Assessment and Impacts on Approach

Assessing Internal Control Risks/ Sample Sizes

BB

Updating our Audit Approach

B|B

Yellow Book Update

IT/Paperless/Other

Team Building: Building and Maintaining Effective and Successful Teams

CCII Paperless Audit Software/ Trial Balance Function

IT Information Systems Review Updates

EB|B

Professional Writing

B(B

Qualifications and Continuity

Our people accumulate over 1,500 hours of purely municipal audit and accounting experience annually,

far more than in any general service accounting firm.

We provide our clients continuity while introducing enough new people to keep our perspective fresh
and provide you with the benefits of rotation. We intend to retain all the people assigned to your audit
throughout this year’s entire engagement. In future years we plan to rotate no more than one person
on each segment whom we will replace with someone of equal experience. Changes to the engagement
partner, manager, or supervisory staff will be made only after written permission from the District.

15




FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

We do everything we can to ensure continuity because it helps you, it helps our staff and it helps us. We
schedule the entire year in advance to avoid conflicts, and we give priority to clients who are able to
accurately predict the date their books will be closed, so that the staff on their audit will not be affected
if another client’s closing or audit is delayed. We attempt to match personalities as well as skills and
abilities so that our staff and yours will get along well.

External Quality Control Review/Peer Review

We are members of the Quality Review Program of the AICPA, which means we subject ourselves to a peer
review of our workpapers and quality control procedures every three years by independent accountants
specializing in such work. Our most recent completed peer review was completed in 2018; we again
received a rating of pass, the highest level of assurance possible. This peer review included a review
of several governmental and non-profit audit engagements, including three Special Districts. A copy of
our most recent peer review opinion is located at the end of this section.

We have just undergone the peer review process again in early 2021.

Our municipal audit reports are subject to annual reviews by various branches of the Office of the State
Controller. District audit reports and Single Audit Act reports receive scrutiny. During the past five years
every one of these reports has been accepted as submitted. Of course, all of our clients’ ACFRs are also
reviewed by GFOA for award consideration; every report submitted has won an award from GFOA.

Litigation
We have not been sued over poor work quality, nor have we paid any such claims out of court in the
past five years, and there are no current and we are not aware of any potential lawsuits. In addition, we

have not received any disciplinary action taken or pending action against us during the past three years
with state regulatory bodies or professional organizations.

16



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

Peer Review Letter

LA N

()
NAPA CPA
OMPANY, INC.

www.CoughlanNapuCPACo.com
Company@CoughlanNapaCPACo.com

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control

February 9, 2021

To Maze & Associates Accountancy Corporation and the Peer Review
Committee of the California Society of CPAs

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing
practice of Maze & Associates Accountancy Corporation (the firm) in effect for the
year ended May 31, 2020. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the
Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer
Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures
performed in a System Review as described in the Standards may be found at
wwaw. aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an explanation of how
engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer
review rating.

Firm’s Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it
to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity
with applicable professiona! standards in all material respects. The firm is also
responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not
performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when appropriate,
and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.

Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the design ofthe system of quality control
and the firm's compliance therewith based on our review.

190 Camino Oruga. Sulte 1 * Napa, CA 94558 « {elephone: 707.255.0677 » fax: 707.255.0687
Member: American Institute of CPAs » California, Hawaii, & Oregon Societies of CPAs

17



FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

Peer Review Letter (Continued)

Required Selections and Considerations

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government
Auditing Standards, including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act.

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as
communicated by the firm, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our
procedures.

Opinion

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice
of Maze & Associates Accountancy Corporation in effect for the year ended May 31,
2020, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable
professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass,
pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Maze & Associates Accountancy Corporation has
received a peer review rating of pass.

Coughlan Napa CPA Company, lnc.

Coughlan Napa CPA Company, Inc.

18



PROJECT TEAM

Audit Team

We are proposing to assign David Alvey, CPA as Engagement Partner, Vikki Rodriguez, CPA as
Alternate/Technical Review Partner, Whitney Crockett, CPA as the Manager, and Daniel Gonzalez as the
Supervisor. We have selected this team based on their extensive municipal experience.

We understand that engagement partners and other supervisory staff may be changed only with
the express written permission.

We will balance out our resources with our Senior Associates and Associates to form fully leveraged teams.
All of our audit staff are experienced with audits of Basic Financial Statements, enterprise operations,
retirement plans, capital assets and infrastructure, long term debt, including swaps and related
compliance and continuing disclosures, and all other aspects of municipal accounting and financial
reporting.

No sub-proposers will be utilized.
Resumes of Staff Assigned to Your Audit

DAVID ALVEY, CPA, Engagement Partner - graduated from St Mary’s College,
Moraga with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting and a Minor in
Business Administration. David has received 500 hours of continuing
education in the past five years. David has experience as an internal auditor
at California Savings Bank in Oakland, CA. He is a Certified Public Accountant
in the State of California. He is a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the California Society of Certified Public Accountants.
David is also a member of the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners. He is
also a member of the CalCPA Accounting Procedures and Assurance Services
\ Committee and the CSMFO Professional Standards Committee. He is a
frequent speaker at our annual training and recently taught a class of over 100 attendees on Fraud and
GASB updates at the annual MazeLive client training event. He has published articles with California
Special District Association’s newspaper. His relevant experience includes:

Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District City of Larkspur
Alameda County Transportation Authority City of Livermore
Alameda County Transportation City of Los Altos

Improvement Authority Town of Los Altos Hills
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District City of Manteca
City of American Canyon Mid-Peninsula Water District
American River Authority Middle Fork Project Finance Authority
Association of Bay Area Governments Monument Crisis Center
Associated Community Action Program City of Napa

19



__ PROJECT TEAM (Continued)

David Alvey, (Continued)

Bay Area Clean Water Agencies
City of Benicia
City of American Canyon
Bethel Island Municipal Improvement District
Calaveras County Water District
Castle Rock County Water District
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District
Central Market Community Benefit District
Citrus Heights Water District
Clausen House
Coastside County Water District
Contra Costa Water Financing Authority
Contra Costa Water District
Contra Costa Water District Retirement Plan
City of Cupertino
City of Daly City
City of Davis
Delta Diablo
Diablo Water District
East Contra Costa County Transit Authority
East Contra Costa Habitat Conservancy
DSRSD/EBMUD Recycled Water Authority
Dublin San Ramon Services District
East Bay Municipal Utilities District (EBMUD)
EBMUD Employee Retirement System
East Palo Alto Sanitary District
Education Pioneers
El Dorado County
El Dorado Irrigation District
City of Escalon
Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District
Freeport Regional Water Authority
City of Galt
City of Hayward
1D Business Solutions
Livermore Amador Valley
Transportation Authority

20

City of Oakley
Partners in School Innovation
City of Petaluma
City of Pittsburg
Placer County Water Authority
City of Pleasant Hill
Regional Parks Foundation
Richmond Housing Authority
City of Rio Vista
City of Roseville
City of San Bruno
City of San Leandro
San Mateo Community College Foundation
San Mateo County Transportation Authority
Peninsula County Joint Powers Authority
San Mateo County Transit District
Santa Clara County Central
Fire Protection District
Santa Clara Valley Water District
Skyline County Water District
Solano Irrigation District
Solano Transportation Authority
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation &
Open Space District
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit
South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Southern Marin Fire Protection District
Stanislaus Waste to Energy
Stinson Beach County Water District
Stopwaste
City of Sunnyvale
Upper Mokelumne River Watershed Authority
Yolo Habitat Conservancy
Walnut Creek Chamber of Commerce
West Bay Sanitary District



] PROJECT TEAM (Continued)

VIKKI C. RODRIGUEZ, CPA, Technical Review/Alternate Partner - Vikki
graduated from San Diego State University where she received her Bachelor of
Science Degree in Accounting with a Minor in English, and received her Master’s
in Taxation at Golden Gate University in 2006. She is a Certified Public
Accountant in the State of California.
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Vikki spent a year and a half working
asan accountant at the City of Daly City and her college years working part time
for both municipal government and nonprofit organizations prior to joining the
firm in 1998. Vikki has accumulated over 360 hours of continuing education in
the past three years as an instructor, participant and student. She has attended

She is a member of the American

many of the annual Nonprofit Organization Conferences held by the California CPA Foundation, as well as
CSMFO conferences. Vikki has served as a member on several non-profit Boards and Audit Committees
andis currently the Board President of the Center for Human Development. Her audit experience includes

the following:

Special Districts
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Association of Bay Area Governments
Alameda Municipal Power
Amador Regional Sanitation Agency
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies
Belvedere-Tiburon Library Agency
Bethel Island Municipal Improvement District
Calaveras County Water District
Coastside County Water District
Contra Costa County Abandoned Vehicle Abatement
Services Authority
Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District
Contra Costa Transportation Authority
Contra Costa Water District
Copperopolis Fire Protection District
Delta Diablo Sanitation District
Diablo Water District
DSRSD/EBMUD Recycled Water Authority
Dublin San Ramon Services District
East Bay Municipal Utility District
East Bay Dischargers Authority
East Palo Alto Sanitation District
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
El Dorado Irrigation District
Fairfield Suisun Sewer District
Freeport Regional Water Authority

21

Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority
Livermore Area Recreation & Park District
Livermore Amador Valley Water Management Agency
Marin-Sonoma Mosquito & Vector Control District
Menlo Park Fire Protection District
Mid-Peninsula Water District
Novato Sanitary District
Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board
Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District
San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency
Transit Authority
San Mateo Transportation Authority
San Mateo County Transit Authority
Santa Clara Valley Animal Control Authority
Santa Clara Valley Water District
Silicon Valley Animal Control Authority
South San Joaquin Irrigation District
Skyline County Water District
Solano Transit Authority
TRAFFIX
Upper Mokelumne River Watershed Authority
West Bay Sanitary District
West Contra Costa Integrated Management Authority
West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Council
West Valley Sanitation District



PROJECT TEAM (Continued)

Vikki Rodriguez, (Continued)

Cities
City of Alameda
City of American Canyon
City of Belmont
City of Belvedere
City of Benicia
City of Cupertino
City of Daly City
City of El Cerrito
City of Emeryville
Town of Fairfax
City of Half Moon Bay
City of Hayward
City of Larkspur
City of Livermore
City of Los Banos
Town of Los Altos Hills
Town of Los Gatos
City of Manteca
City of Martinez

City of Alameda
Town of Atherton

City of Brisbane

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District
Charitable Federated Group

City of Concord

Contra Costa Water District

City of Daly City

22

City of Milpitas
Town of Moraga
City of Newark

City of Palo Alto
City of Petaluma
City of Pittsburg
City of Pleasant Hill
City of Pleasanton
City of Rio Vista
City of San Carlos
City of San Pablo
City of San Rafael
City of Suisun City
City of Sutter Creek
City of San Mateo
City of South Lake Tahoe
City of Tracy

City of Visalia

WHITNEY L. CROCKETT, CPA, Manager - graduated from Washington State
University with a Bachelors of Arts in Business Administration in Accounting in
May 2011 and received a Masters of Accounting Degree in August 2012. She is
a Certified Public Accountant in the State of California. Whitney has received
over 240 hours of continuing education in the past three years and has
participated in the following audits:

El Dorado County

Alameda County Transportation Commission
City of Milpitas

Town of Moraga

Transbay Joint Power Authority

Novato Sanitary District

City of Oakley

City of Pacifica



PROJECT TEAM (Continued)

Whitney Crockett, (Continued)

City of Dublin Peninsula Traffic Congestion Relief Alliance
Dublin San Ramon Services District City of Petaluma

City of East Palo Alto City of Richmond

City of El Cerrito City of Roseville

Town of Fairfax City of Santa Clara

City of Hayward City of San Pablo

City of Lafayette City of San Rafael

City of Larkspur City of Sausalito

Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority South San Joaquin Irrigation District

City of Los Banos Stopwaste

City of Manteca TRAFFIX

Marin/Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District ~ Tri-Dam Project/Tri-Dam Power Authority
City of Martinez City of Vallejo

City of Mountain View City of Watsonwville

City of Pittsburg City of West Sacramento

Livermore-Amador Valley Water Management Agency  Town of Woodside

REFERENCES.

Citrus Heights Water District —A client from 2015 to 2021

Engagement Partner — David Alvey

Work Scope & Reports:
Annual comprehensive Financial Report (We assisted in their first successful ACFR award!)
Memorandum on Internal Controls

Novato Sanitary District — A client since 2014
Engagement Partner — David Alvey
Work Scope & Reports:
District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communications

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District — A client since 2013
Engagement Partner — David Alvey and Vikki Rodriguez
Work Scope & Reports:
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communications
Agreed Upon Procedures (Internal Audit)
Annual Report of Financial Transactions

23



REFERENCES

Contra Costa Water District — A client from 2000 — 2010 and returned in 2013 and again in 2021
Engagement Partners — David Alvey and Vikki Rodriguez
Audit Manager — Whitney Crockett
Work Scope & Reports:
District’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communications
Retirement Plan Basic Financial Statements
Other Post Employment Benefit Basic Financial Statements
Contra Costa Water Authority (JPA) Basic Financial Statements

Santa Clara Valley Water District — A client since 2019

Engagement Partner — David Alvey

Work Scope & Reports:
Annual comprehensive Financial Report
Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communications
Single Audit

SEGMENTED TIME AND FEE

Based on the review of the June 30, 2021 basic financial report, we have estimated our time as follows:

Budgeted Hours
Engagement Alternate
Audit Activities Partner Partner Manager Supervisor Associates Office Total
General Proceedures/Planning/Confirm/Checklists 4.00 2.00 6.00
SAS #99 Fraud A 1.00 2.00 1,00 4.00
Minutes-resolutions 1.00 1.00
Report 3.00 1.00 4.00 1.00 1.00 10.00
Supervision/review 2.00 4.00 6.00 12,00
Conferences & meetings 2.00 2.00 1.00 5.00
B t letter 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.50 3.50
Internal Control Environment / Info Systems Review 16.00 16.00
Cash & Investments 8.00 8.00
/Receivabl 10.00 10.00
Capital Assets 24.00 24.00
Accounts Payable 16.00 16.00
Obligation to the City 8.00 8.00
Net position 1.00 1.00
Risk B 3.00 3.00
Commitments and Contingencie: 2.00 2.00
Grand Total 9.00 1.00 17.00 13.00 88.00 1.50 129.50




_ SEGMENTED TIME AND FEE (Continued)

Our fee for the work outline in the RFP is as follows:

Hourly Totals (2) Three Optional Extensions
Hours (3) Rates (4} 2022 2023 2024 Year Total 2025 2026 Grand Total
Basic Financial Statements
& Management Letter:
Partner 10.00 $300 $3,000 $3,100 $3,200 $9,300 $3,300 $3,400 $16,000
Manager 17.00 165 2,800 2,900 3,000 8,700 3,100 3,200 15,000
Supervisor 13.00 130 1,700 1,750 1,800 5,250 1,850 1,900 9,000
Associates 88.00 90 7,900 8,200 8,500 24,600 8,800 9,100 42,500
Office 1.50 75 100 100 100 300 100 100 500
Basic Financial Statements &
Management Letter: 129.50 15,500 16,050 16,600 48,150 17,150 17,700 83,000
Out-of-pocket expenses (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total all-inclusive maximum price: $15,500 $16,050 $16,600 $48,150 $17,150 $17,700 83,000

NOTES:
(1) Out-of-pocket expenses are included in our standard hourly rate.
{2) Our policy is to attempt to keep our clients fees constant after inflation. Therefore, the fees far years subsequent
to 2022 have been adjusted for the estimated CPl increase.
Bureau of Labor Statistics for the San Francisco-Oakland Area.
{3) Estimated hours are expected to remain constant.
(4) The hourly rates can be used for any additional work the District may request that would be outside the scope of the audit engagement.

25



	Memo-Assist-Dist-Mgr-220808.pdf
	TO:  Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District




